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This is the Group’s second financial year after shifting its business focus to Macau’s property, hotel and

entertainment businesses. The Group continued making profit for the year 2006 with earnings substantially

contributed from the Macau territory.

Various stock market research reports reaffirm the long-term bullish in the economy of Macau. In 2006,

Macau’s gambling income surged to US$7 billion, an increase of 22% from 2005 and exceeded that of Las

Vegas in the US. Macau has been viewed as a tremendous source of opportunity given its proximity to a huge

population market, the PRC, with a great desire for traveling, shopping and gambling. With the opening of

luxurious hotels and casinos operated by the world’s top class players, more tourists from the PRC and the

Asian countries are allured to the territory. We consider that Macau’s hyper growth and new offerings would be

a positive phenomenon for the market as a whole. Macau is developing like a reemerging Atlantic City where

more restaurants, shops and quality hotel rooms are escalating and leading the market away from just a big

“gambler”. We are therefore optimistic on the entertainment business of the Group.

The property market is also a prosperous Sector in Macau. Property prices in 2006 were increased by 5 to 10%,

as compared with 2005s’. In the selected areas, such as Horta E Costa and Conselheiro Ferreira de Almeida,

prices raised 16% or more were recorded. Properties on the Macau Peninsula were selling at MOP1,500 per sq.

ft. while luxurious properties were selling at MOP2,000 to MOP3,000 per sq. ft. In 2006, there were approximately

13,000 properties sold at a total value of MOP11.6 billion of which about 60% were residential units.

Good quality properties would continue to be the focus of the buyers due to (i) the increase of disposable

income of the Macau population, (ii) the inflow of experts from the US and western countries for the development

of casinos and (iii) the PRC and Hong Kong immigrants.

To cope with the high-speed evolution of the gambling and property markets, and the influx of tourists (reached

20 million), the Macau Government foresees the essentiality to advance its infrastructure and to reconsider the

best possible land usage. Different infrastructure plans are being pondered by the Macau Government. These

include the light rail system, Lotus Bridge which will connect the Guangdong province in the PRC with Cotai

and the Hong Kong-Zhuhai-Macau Bridge. The light rail system is scheduled to complete in 4 years stretching

for 22 km on the outskirts of the Peninsula to Taipa. It is inevitable for any international cities in the world to

build mass transit railway systems as once these systems are constructed their economies flourish followed by

the relief of traffic jams. We anticipate that upon the completion of the light rail system, the problem of heavy

traffic congestion in Macau would be significantly resolved and hence lead to further boost up of the property

market. On the other hand, the public is looking forward to seeing certain arrangements can be made imminently

by the PRC Government in granting the development right on the Henqin Island (Zhuhai) in the PRC to ease the

land shortage in Macau.

In view of the prominent market trends and the supportive government policies mentioned above, we expect

the demand for good quality properties in Macau will continue to grow. The Group is reckoning the development

and redevelopment of the properties held by the Group for tapping into the middle class income groups’ house

buyers.
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As stated in the last year’s annual report, for those business segments which have not been making contributions

to the Group, the Board would take appropriate actions in due course with an aim to maximize shareholder

value. During 2006, the Group has disposed of the businesses in MOCCA and health care. Through the

elimination of these two segments with their net operating results recorded deficits in years 2005 and 2006, the

Group is able to concentrate its resources in the hotel business as well as the property development in Macau.

We are very confident that the future economy of Macau will continue to be promising as both of the Macao

Government and the venturesome businessmen of the territory are determined to position Macau to become an

international city rather than “gamblers” filled up city.

There were changes in the directorships of the Company after the board meeting held on 20 April 2007. Mr.

Chiang Pedro, Mr. Wu Ka I, Miguel and Mr. Ung Choi Kun resigned as executive Directors of the Company on

personal reasons; and Mr. Choy Wang Kong, Mr. Young Wing Tai, William and Mr. Chiang Kin Tong were

appointed as executive Directors of the Company. Details of their biography are disclosed on page 18 of this

Annual Report.

Law Kar Po

Vice Chairman

20 April 2007
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Business Review

Hotel and entertainment businesses

The Group has a 40% interest in Hotel Golden Dragon (Macao) Company Limited (“Hotel Golden Dragon”)

which owns a hotel of the same name and Hotel Golden Dragon has a 60% interest in Sunny Tourist &

Entertainment Company Limited (“Sunny Tourist”). Sunny Tourist provides tourist and related services to casinos

operating in Hotel Golden Dragon. Hotel Golden Dragon was one of the hotels benefited from the encouraging

performance of the gambling business of Macau, which recorded an income of US$7 billion for 2006, exceeded

that of the Las Vegas. The share of results from associates during the year amounted to HK$95 million. Income

from hotel operations and gambling related operations increased by 11% and 23% respectively as compared

with last year. As the Group’s property development projects are still under development, Hotel Golden Dragon

continued to be the Key contributor and provide a stable income stream to the Group. With the construction of

the Cotai Strip in progress and the inaugurations of world class international brand hotels in the region, we

believe more tourists from the PRC and Asian countries would be attracted to visit this international city and

hence greater revenue will be captured by Hotel Golden Dragon.

Property investment

Edificio Chu Kuan Mansion, Macau（珠江大廈）

Edificio Chu Kuan Mansion, Macau（珠江大廈）comprises three blocks of buildings, with a total of 267 office

units, 156 residential units, 31 shops and 441 car parking spaces. It is situated at the conjunction of Avenida

Xian Xing Hai（冼星海大馬路）, Rua de Madrid（馬德里街）and Rua de Londres（倫敦街）.

In May 2006, the Group acquired 66 residential units and 60 car parking spaces at a total consideration of

HK$139.8 million from an independent third party. In March 2007, 24 residential units of which were sold to

another independent third party at a total consideration of HK$53.6 million, a gain of approximately HK$4.3

million (subject to the final audit for the year ending 31 December 2007). The Directors continue to be

optimistic on the prospects of the residential property market in view of the strong demand for high quality

apartments to cater for the need of middle class residents in Macau. Currently, the Group intends to withhold

the remaining residential units and car parking spaces for investment purpose.

Tap Siac, Macau（澳門塔石街）

The Group, through a subsidiary (in which the Group owns 51% while the remaining 49% is owned by an

independent third party), owns a single seven storey block building located at nos. 1-13 da Rua do Tap Siac,

Macau（澳門塔石街）, with a site area of 1,085 sq. m., for investment purpose. It is located within the town

centre of Macau and is adjacent to Horta E Costa（高士德區）and Conselheiro Ferreira de Almeida（荷蘭園區）.

It is also easily assessable by transports and is encircled by famous shopping arcades. The property prices in the

region increased by 16% as compared with the last year’s. Renovation work of the property will commence

upon the completion of Tap Siac Concourse, a shopping arcade with an area of 8,000 sq. m. scheduled to finish

around mid 2007.
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Cheok Ka Chun, Taipa, Macau（澳門蕌仔卓家村）

The Group has a 55% interest of a Macau company which holds a construction site at Lote TN6, Cheok Ka

Chun, Taipa, Macau（澳門蕌仔卓家村）. The site is a private land which covers about 4,661 sq. m.. The Group

intends to develop the site into a high-storey and luxurious residential apartment with a shopping arcade. The

site is located in the northern part of Taipa and is surrounded by the University of Macau and the Crown Hotel.

Comparing with the Macau peninsula, Taipa is used to be of a low density populated area where in most of the

middle class residential properties stand up there. The imminent light rail system is going to connect Macau

peninsula with Taipa. With the improvement of the transportation infrastructure in Taipa, the proposed

development will bring a substantial income to the Group. The increment in property prices in Taipa is

promising since the Group acquired the Cheok Ka Chun site in February 2006.

With the continuing growth of Macau’s economy as well as the property market, the Group will keep on

identifying potential quality development projects which will increase the investment return for the Group.

Leather trading business

During the year 2006, the Group’s turnover in leather trading business was HK$72 million, a drop of 15% from

the annualized business of last year due to the competition of the market. Gross profit has however increased

by 10% due to certain very old stocks with provision made were successfully sold in 2006. Despite of it, this

business segment incurred losses from operations during the year under review and the management is closely

monitoring the performance of the leather trading business and appropriate restructuring strategies will be

taken.

Business restructuring

In June 2006, the Group disposed of the shoes and handbags Hong Kong retail business operated under the

brand “MOCCA” at a consideration of HK$950,000 to a company controlled by Mr. Law Kar Po and Ms Law

Wing Yee, Wendy, who are executive Directors of the Group. The Group’s retail business in Macau was also

closed in 2006. This business segment incurred net losses of HK$5.3 million for the nine months ended 31

December 2005. The situation did not improve in the first half of 2006 and hence resulted in the Directors’

decision to sell the business. The disposal has improved the net operating results of the Group.

The performance of the Group’s health care business was not satisfactory during the year under review and the

Group did not have the necessary expertise to manage the business. Accordingly, the health care business was

disposed of to an independent third party at a consideration of HK$2 million in October 2006.

Apart from the above disposals, the Group did not have any material acquisition or disposal of subsidiaries or

associated companies during the year under review.
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Future plans

The Group has been streamlining its business and focusing most of the resources in the property development

business in Macau. International investors are looking for investment opportunities in the city, and both of the

public and private sectors are not persuaded to confine Macau to be a mere gambling related city. They intend

to develop Macau into a multi-entertainment city whereby different people’s needs will be met with, from

businessmen to their family members. The Group’s existing investment portfolio includes hotel, entertainment,

residential and shopping arcade projects. The Group will continue to seek for investment opportunities in this

fast developing city.

Human Resources

As at 31 December 2006, the Group employed about 29 full-time staff in Hong Kong and 1 in Macau. The

Group remunerates employees based on their performance, experience and prevailing industry practices. It also

offers benefits such as training programme to staff to enhance their sense of loyalty.

Financial Review

Results

For the year ended 31 December 2006, the Group reported a turnover of HK$ 73 million, compared with HK$

64 million for the 9-month period ended 31 December 2005, a drop of 15% from the annualised operations of

the corresponding period. Net profit reached HK$57.3 million (9-month period ended 31 December 2005:

HK36.1 million). Basic earnings per share: HK 2.09 cents (9-month period ended 31 December 2005: HK cents

1.78).

The financial year end date of the Group was changed from 31 March to 31 December during the last financial

period in order to align with the statutory year end date of Hotel Golden Dragon. Accordingly, the final results

for the year ended 31 December 2006 are not directly comparable with those for the last financial period.

Fund-raising activities

During the year under review, the Group successfully placed 400,000,000 new shares at HK$0.148 per placing

share and raised approximately HK$58 million. Out of the proceeds from this fund-raising activity, HK$48

million was used to acquire certain properties in Macau and HK$10 million was used as general working

capital of the Group.
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Liquidity and financial resources

Equity attributable to equity holders of the Group as at 31 December 2006 was HK$740 million. The Group’s

gearing ratio defined as the total liabilities over total equity (including minority interest) as at 31 December

2006 was 70%.

The net current liabilities as at 31 December 2006 was HK$296 million while the cash and bank balances as at

31 December 2006 was HK$35 million. The Directors believe that a substantial part of the short term liabilities,

mainly composed of bank loans obtained for the acquisition of property for development, are renewable

annually upon their respective due dates. The Group intends to finance the construction costs of the properties

under development from bank loans.

Change of use of proceeds

Pursuant to the Company’s announcement of 5 July 2005, where it was stated that the net proceeds (arising

from a placing of 60,000,000 new shares of HK$0.35 each and 225,000,000 warrants (unlisted) of HK$0.022

per warrant) of approximately HK$25 million, which would be applied as to approximately HK$20 million to

expand the retail business of the Group under the brand name MOCCA and as to approximately HK$5 million

as additional general working capital. Up to the date of the disposal of the MOCCA business in June 2006 as

referred to above, approximately HK$10 million was applied in the said business. Given that the retail business

had been disposed of, the Directors considered that it would be appropriate to apply the unutilized net

proceeds of approximately HK$15 million as general working capital.

Final dividend

The Board has resolved not to propose any final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2006 (period ended

31 December 2005: nil).

Contingent liabilities

As at 31 December 2006, the Group did not have any significant contingent liabilities (2005: nil).

Charge on assets

As at the balance sheet date, investment property, properties under development and property held for sale of

the Group amounting to HK$536 million (2005: HK$73 million) were pledged to secure general banking

facilities.
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Foreign currencies

During the year under review, most of the business transactions, assets and liabilities of the Group were

denominated in Hong Kong Dollars, Renminbi, Macao Pataca (MOP) and United States Dollars. The Group had

no material foreign exchange exposure risks during the year under review.

Prospect of the Group

Although buyers were cautious of entering into the Macau property market in the first half of 2006, sentiment in

the Macau property market remains strong that property prices are expected to rise further in the medium to

long term. The trend of more Hong Kong property developers entering into the Macau market is expected to

continue as long as development costs in Macau are lower than that of Hong Kong. Land is in scarcity in Macau

which will inevitably lead to appreciation of property values in the long run.

The Group is planning to further intensify its investment in the Macau property market and is looking for

additional property development projects to enhance the portfolio of the property development projects held by

the Group. In order to generate additional income to the Group, the Directors are also looking for short term

investment opportunities that could efficiently utilize the financial resources of the Group.
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The board of directors (the “Board”) and the Management of the Company are committed to the principles of

corporate governance and to maximize shareholder value. These principles and objective enhance the

transparency, accountability and independence of the Company and its ability to attract investment and protect

rights of shareholders.

Compliance with the Code on Corporate Governance Practices

The Company has adopted its own code on corporate governance practices which incorporates all the code

provisions in the Code on Corporate Governance Practices (the “Code”) in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing

the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”). The Directors

confirm that, throughout the financial year under review, the Company complied with the code provisions of

the Code with a deviation of code provision A.4.1 which stipulates that non-executive directors (including

independent non-executive directors) should be appointed for a specific term and subject to re-election. The

term of office for non-executive directors of the Company (the “Company”) and independent non-executive

Directors is not specific. It is provided in the Company’s articles of association that all the Directors are subject

to retirement by rotation at least once every three years at the annual general meeting and are eligible for re-

appointment. The Directors are of the view that such provision in Company’s articles of association has been

able to safeguard corporate governance.

Model Code for Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted a stringent code of conduct governing directors’ securities transactions on terms no

less exacting than required standard set out in the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed

Issuers (the “Model Code”) set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules throughout the financial period under

review. Having made specific enquiry of all Directors, the Directors have complied with the required standard

set out in the Model Code and the Company’s code of conduction regarding directors’ securities transactions.

Board of Directors

During the financial year under review, before the resignation of Mr. Lee Sam Yuen, John from the office of an

executive Director on 1 May 2006 and Mr. Chui Sai Cheong from the office of a non-executive Director on 25

August 2006, the Board was made up of eight executive Directors, two non-executive Directors and three

independent non-executive Directors and they are collectively responsible for the success of the Company.

Each Director has a duty to act in good faith in the best interests of the Company for the manner in which the

affairs of the Company are managed, controlled and operated. The Board, as at 31 December 2006, comprised:

(a) seven executive Directors, namely Mr. Chiang Pedro (Chairman), Mr. Law Kar Po (Vice Chairman), Mr.

Wu Ka I, Miguel (Chief Executive Officer), Mr. Hoi Man Pak, Mr. Ung Choi Kun, Ms Law Wing Yee,

Wendy (who is a daughter of Mr. Law Kar Po) and Ms Lee Siu Yuk, Eliza.

(b) one non-executive Director: Mr. Leonel Alberto Alves
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(c) three independent non-executive Directors required under Rule 3.10(1) of the Listing Rules, namely Mr.

Wong King Lam, Joseph, Mr. Lau Wai Ming and Mr. Kwok Hong Yee, Jesse, who in aggregate represent

approximately 27% of the Board. Two of them have appropriate professional qualifications, accounting

and related financial expertise required under Rules 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules.

There were changes in the directorships of the Company after the board meeting held on 20 April 2007. Mr.

Chiang Pedro, Mr. Wu Ka I, Miguel and Mr. Ung Choi Kun resigned as executive Directors of the Company on

personal reasons; and Mr. Choy Wang Kong, Mr. Young Wing Tai, William and Mr. Chiang Kin Tong were

appointed as executive Directors of the Company. Details of their biography are disclosed on page 18 of this

Annual Report.

The Company considers the Board has a range of the necessary skills and experiences for discharging their

duties. All Directors have been kept informed on a timely basis through the Senior Management of major

changes that may affect the Company’s business with new development in accordance with the applicable rules

and regulations.

Independent Professional Advice

Directors may, in appropriate circumstances, take independent professional advice or external consultants at

the Company’s expense. Professional consultants include senior counsel and public relations company have

given the Board and its Senior Management opinions on fortifying the corporate image as well as legal advices

on selling the Company’s health care and MOCCA shoes and bags retail businesses.

Board Meetings

The Board meets regularly to set the objectives of the Company, make decisions on strategic plans and budgets,

monitor the performance of the Senior Management, determine and review the strategy of the Company, and

oversee the Company’s compliance with statutory and regulatory obligations ensuring there is a sound system

of internal control and risk management with a goal of protecting the interests of all shareholders.

Sufficient notices accompanying with agendas for regular and non-regular board meetings were given to all of

the directors so that full attendance could be attained and the best business decisions could be made with

ample information supplied. The Board conducts meeting on a regular and ad hoc basis, as required by

business needs. The Articles of the Company allows board meetings to be conducted by way of telephone or

video conference from time to time when necessary unless any matters in which a substantial shareholder or a

director or their respective associates has conflict of interest.
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The Board held totally 10 board meetings during the year under review and the attendance of individual

director is recorded as follows:

Attendance Record of Board Meetings (1 January 2006 — 31 December 2006)

Attendance

Attendance rate

Number of board meetings 10

Executive Directors

CHIANG Pedro (Chairman) 8/10 80%

LAW Kar Po (Vice Chairman) 6/10 60%

WU Ka I, Miguel (Chief Executive Officer) 10/10 100%

HOI Man Pak 6/10 60%

UNG Choi Kun 1/10 10%

LEE Sam Yuen, John (resigned on 1 May 2006) 0/1 0%

LAW Wing Yee, Wendy 3/10 30%

LEE Siu Yuk, Eliza 9/10 90%

Non-executive Directors

Leonel Alberto ALVES 0/10 0%

CHUI Sai Cheong (resigned on 25 August 2006) 0/5 0%

Independent Non-executive Directors

WONG King Lam, Joseph 4/10 40%

LAU Wai Ming 4/10 40%

KWOK Hong Yee, Jesse 4/10 40%

The Company has arranged for appropriate liability insurance to indemnify its Directors for their liabilities

arising out of performance of their duties. The insurance coverage is reviewed on an annual basis.

Independent Non-executive Directors

In compliance with Rules 3.10(1) and 3.10(2) of Listing Rules, the Company has appointed three independent

non-executive Directors, two of whom have financial management expertise, which contributes to the effective

direction of the Company. The Board is aware of the other commitment of the independent non-executive

Directors and is satisfied that these do not conflict with their duties as directors of the Company. The Board has

received from each of them the annual confirmation of independence required by Rule 3.13 of the Listing

Rules. Based on those confirmation, the Board considers that each of the independent non-executive Directors

to be independent.
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The terms and conditions of appointing the independent non-executive directors are available for inspection at

the Company’s registered office.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

In compliance with code provision A.2.1 of the Code and to reinforce the respective independence and

accountability, the role and function of the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer of the Company are

segregated.

During the year under review, Mr. Chiang Pedro was the Chairman of the Company while Mr. Wu Ka I, Miguel

was the Chief Executive Officer of the Company. Their respective responsibilities are clearly established and

defined by the Board in writing.

The Board and Senior Management

The Board, headed by the Chairman, is responsible for formulation and approval of the Company’s development

and business strategies and policies, approval of annual budgets and business plans and supervision of the

Senior Management for the best interest of the Company.

The task of the Senior Management is the successful implementation of the strategy and direction as determined

by the Board. In doing so, they must apply business principles and ethics which are consistent with those

expected by the Board and shareholders. The Board delegated the Senior Management to locating investment

opportunities, implementation of internal control and risk management, compiling financial reports and

discharging day-to-day management of the Company’s operations. The Board establishes the strategic direction

of the Company and monitors the performance of the Senior Management. The Senior Management is responsible

for the day-to-day operations and administration function of the Group under the leadership of the executive

Directors. The types of decisions to be delegated by the Board to the Senior Management include implementation

of the strategy and direction determined by the Board, operation of the Group’s daily businesses and compliance

with applicable laws and regulations.

During the year under review, the Board reviewed the remuneration packages of the Directors and the Senior

Management, including discretionary bonus, which are based on individual performance, skill and knowledge,

involvement in the Group’s affairs and performance and profitability of the Group.

Board Committees

The Board has established the internal committees which are of no less exacting terms than those set out in the

Code on Corporate Governance Practices of the Listing Rules. They are Compensation Committee, Nomination

Committee and Audit Committee. To further reinforce independence, the Compensation Committee, Nomination

Committee and Audit Committee are structured to include a majority of independent non-executive Directors.
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Compensation Committee

During the year under review, the Compensation Committee was chaired by Mr. Chiang Pedro with committee

members comprising three independent non-executive Directors: Mr. Wong King Lam, Joseph, Mr. Lau Wai

Ming and Mr. Kwok Hong Yee, Jesse. The Compensation Committee makes recommendations to the Board for

the remunerations and benefits of the Chairman, the Directors and the Senior Management of the Company. The

responsibilities of the Compensation Committee are described in the terms of reference adopted during the year

under review. Details of the remunerations of the Directors are shown on pages 71 to 73 of this Annual Report.

The Compensation Committee had not met during the financial year under review.

Nomination Committee

During the year under review, the members of the Nomination Committee included the three independent non-

executive Directors (Mr. Wong King Lam, Joseph, Mr. Lau Wai Ming and Mr. Kwok Hong Yee, Jesse) with Mr.

Chiang Pedro as the Committee Chairman. The Nomination Committee is responsible for making recommendations

to the Board for its approval on the appointment of Directors, evaluation of board composition and the

management of board succession with reference to certain guidelines as endorsed by the Committee. These

guidelines take account of appropriate industry experience, professional ethics and knowledge, personal skills

and time commitments of members. The Nomination Committee carries out the process of selecting and

recommending candidates for directorship including the consideration of referrals and engagement of external

recruitment professionals when necessary. The Committee did not hold any meeting during the year under

review. The nomination procedures adopted by the Nomination Committee include: the Chairman of the

Committee, in consultation with the person responsible for human resources and the secretary of the Nomination

Committee, should be primarily responsible for drawing up and approving the agenda for each Nomination

Committee meeting. Potential candidates are then considered at the Nomination Committee meetings based on

their experience, professional qualifications and their expected remuneration packages.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee reviews the Company’s financial reports, internal controls and corporate governance

issues and makes relevant recommendations to the Board. The written terms of reference which describes the

authority and duties of the Audit Committee has been prepared and adopted with reference to “A Guide for The

Formation of An Audit Committee” and “A Guide for Effective Audit Committee” published by the Hong Kong

Institute of Certified Public Accountants, and amended in accordance with the Code. All the committee members

are independent non-executive Directors and two of them possess appropriate professional qualifications,

accounting or financial management expertise. The Chairman of the Committee, Mr. Wong King Lam, Joseph, is

a qualified accountant and has relevant financial experience. Other members are Mr. Lau Wai Ming and Mr.

Kwok Hong Yee, Jesse. None of the Audit Committee members are members of the former or existing auditors of

the Company.
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The Audit Committee met 5 times in 2006 (with an attendance rate of each member of 100%). During the

meetings, the Audit Committee reviewed the accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group, the

interim and annual reports of the Group and discussed with the Senior Management of the auditing, internal

control and financial reporting matters including the review of the unaudited interim results of the six months

ended 30 June 2006 and the audited results for the year ended 31 December 2005. It was also discussed in

such meetings the disposals of the Group’s non-core businesses during the year ended 31 December 2006.

Attendance Record of Audit Committee Meetings

(1 January 2006 — 31 December 2006)

Attendance

Attendance rate

Number of audit committee meetings 5

Independent Non-executive Directors

WONG King Lam, Joseph 5/5 100%

LAU Wai Ming 5/5 100%

KWOK Hong Yee, Jesse 5/5 100%

Auditors’ Remuneration

The Audit Committee is satisfied with the process, effectiveness, independence and objectivity of CCIF CPA

Limited.

Directors’ Responsibilities for the Financial Statements

The Directors aim to present the financial statements of the Company in accordance with the statutory

requirements and applicable accounting standards. The Directors ensure the publication of financial statements

of the Company in a timely manner that the final and interim results of the Company are announced within the

four months and three months limit respectively after the end of the relevant periods prescribed under the

Listing Rules.

The financial statements of the Company for the period from 1 January 2006 to 31 December 2006 have been

reviewed by the Audit Committee and audited by the external auditors, CCIF CPA Limited. The Directors

acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing the financial statements of the Company and presenting a

balanced, clear and comprehensive assessment of the Company’s performance and prospects. They are not

aware of any material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the

ability of the Company to continue as a going concern. The Statement of the Auditors about their reporting

responsibilities on the Financial Statements is set out in the Auditors’ Report on pages 30 to 31.
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Internal Control

The Board is committed to managing risk and to controlling its business and financial activities so as to

maximize profitable business opportunities, avoid or reduce risks which can cause loss or damage to reputation,

ensure compliance with applicable rules and regulations, and enhance resilience to external events. The Board

has delegated to the Senior Management the implementation of such systems of internal control as well as risk

management. The effectiveness and adequacy of the systems of internal control and risk management are

reviewed periodically by the Board and the Audit Committee. Based on the assessment made by them for the

year under review, the Board is satisfied that the internal controls and accounting systems of the Company have

been in place and function effectively. The internal controls and accounting systems are designed to provide

reasonable assurance that material assets are protected, business risks attributable to the Company are identified

and monitored, material transactions are executed in accordance with management’s authorization and the

accounts are reliable for publication.

Investor Relations

The Company continues to pursue a proactive policy of promoting corporate transparency and communications

with potential investors and investment community through its mandatory interim and final reports. The Senior

Management responsible for investor relations hold meetings with press reporters and potential strategic investors

to keep them abreast of the Company’s development.

Communication with Shareholders

The Board recognizes the importance of good communications with all shareholders so that they can exercise

their rights as shareholders in an informed manner. Besides of regular distribution of financial reports, the

Company is constructing a corporate website to foster effective communications with the shareholders, which is

scheduled to complete in 2007. It will be maintained to disseminate Company’s announcements and presentations,

shareholders’ information and other relevant financial and non-financial information on a timely basis.

Another regular dialogue with shareholders is the annual general meeting. It provides a useful forum for

shareholders to exchange views with the Board.
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Executive Directors

Mr. LAW Kar Po, Vice Chairman, aged 58, is presently the managing director of Lobo Investment Limited. He

has over 30 years of experience in hotel investment, property investments, manufacturing and retailing businesses.

Mr. Law is also a director of Hotel Golden Dragon (Macao) Company Limited. He is responsible for the setting

of strategies of the Group and joined the Group in 2004.

Mr. Law is also the director of Honesty Service Limited, Honesty Treasure Limited, Parsinno International

Limited, Pearl Oriental Macau Limited, Star Palace Enterprises Limited, Super Times Far East Limited, Canasta

Overseas Group Limited, Prospect Sync Holdings Limited and Fast Action Developments Limited, all of which

are subsidiaries of the Company. He is the father of Ms. Law Wing Yee, Wendy.

Mr. HOI Man Pak, aged 46, has over 20 years of experience in the tourism, hotel operations and entertainment

business in Macau. He is also a director of the Hotel Golden Dragon (Macao) Company Limited. Mr. Hoi is a

member of the Macau Tourism Development Committee of the Macau Government and a member of the Fujian-

Macao Economic Cooperation Promotion Committee. He is responsible for the development, management and

operation of hotel business of the Group and joined the Group in 2005.

Ms. LAW Wing Yee, Wendy, aged 28, is a qualified solicitor in Hong Kong. Ms. Law holds a LLB degree from

University of London, UK and the Postgraduate Certificate in Laws from University of Hong Kong. She is

responsible for overall business development. Ms. Law joined the Group in 2004.

Ms. Law is the also a director of City United Developments Limited, Elite Star Development Limited, Gold

Oasis Development Limited, Honesty Service Limited, Honesty Treasure Limited, Pearl Oriental Macau Limited,

Canasta Overseas Group Limited and Prospect Sync Holdings Limited, all of which are subsidiaries of the

Company. She is a daughter of Mr. Law Kar Po.

Ms. LEE Siu Yuk, Eliza, aged 46, has over 20 years of experience in business operation, investment, marketing

and project management. Ms. Lee holds a Master degree of Business Administration from Murdoch University,

Australia. Ms. Lee is responsible for the implementation of corporate policy, business development plans,

administration, the management of daily operation, marketing functions and general affairs of the Group. She

joined the Group in 2004.

Ms. Lee is also a director of Honesty Services Limited, Honesty Treasure Limited, Parsinno International Limited,

Pearl Oriental Macau Limited, Star Palace Enterprises Limited, Honesty Treasure Management Ltd. (Macao), Son

Pou Real Estate Company Limited (Macao), Super Times Far East Limited, Canasta Overseas Group Limited,

Prospect Sync Holdings Limited and Fast Action Developments Limited, all of which are subsidiaries of the

Company.
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Mr. CHOY Wang Kong, aged 61, is the Managing Director of Zhi Hua (China) Investment Co. Ltd.[志華（中國）

投資有限公司 ]. Mr. Choy has 30 years of experience in property development, manufacturing and natural

resources exploration in Macau and the mainland China, and he comprehends very well the Macau’s property

market. Mr. Choy will be mainly responsible for the property developments of the Group. Mr. Choy joined the

Group in 2007.

Mr. YONG Wing Tai, William, aged 45, is the Managing Director of The First International Property Planning &

Management Company Limited in Macau. Mr. Yong has ample experience in the field of real estate management

project development, with specialty in the business administration and the financial managements. Mr. Yong

graduated from the University of British Columbia in Canada. He will be responsible for the project planning

and management of the properties development of the Group. Mr. Yong joined the Group in 2007.

Mr. CHIANG Kin Tong, aged 23, is a Director of Kin Wo Property Company Limited（建和物業有限公司）in

Macau. Mr. Chiang holds a Bachelor degree of Science in Business Administration. Mr. Chiang will be responsible

for the marketing of the property development of the Group. He is a son of Mr. Chiang Perdo. Mr. Chiang

joined the Group in 2007.

Non-executive Director

Mr. Leonel Alberto ALVES, aged 49, is a solicitor with over 20 years of experience serving for the Government

of the Macau SAR. He obtained his Bachelor degree in Law from the Universidade Classica de Lisboa（里斯本傳

統大學）in 1980. He is a member of the Legislative Assembly of Macau SAR since 1984, executive committee

members of the Executive Council of the Macau SAR and the Chief Executive Election Committee of the Macau

SAR, the chairman of Comissao de Fiscalizacao da Disciplina das Forcas e Servicos de Seguranca de Macau（澳

門保安部隊及保安部門紀律監察委員會）and the President of the General Meeting of the Sacred House of

Mercy of Macao. Mr. Alves joined the Group in 2005.
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Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. LAU Wai Ming, aged 51, has been a practising member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public

Accountants since 1986. He was an accountant of Staveley Far East Engineering Limited; a member company of

an UK listed company. Mr. Lau is also a director of an association organizing seminars focusing on cultural

exchange between east and west for business executives, professionals and civil servants in various cities. Mr.

Lau joined the Group in 2005.

Mr. KWOK Hong Yee, Jesse, aged 53, is both an independent solicitor and notary in Messrs. Jesse H. Y. Kwok &

Co. with substantial previous working experiences acting as solicitors of the Supreme Courts in Hong Kong, the

United Kingdom and Singapore. He obtained his Bachelor of Laws (LLB) and Master of Laws (LLM) in Civil Laws

from the Peking University in the PRC. Mr. Kwok was appointed as a Temporary Magistrate between December

1994 and March 1995, a Temporary Adjudicator of the Small Claims Tribunal and a Panel Arbitrator. He is also

members of the Law Society of Hong Kong, the Law Society of England, Singapore Academy of Law, the

Chartered Institute of Arbitrators, the Hong Kong Securities Institute, the Hong Kong Institute of Directors and

he is also a committee member of the Society of Notaries. Mr. Kwok joined the Group in 2005.

Mr. WONG King Lam, Joseph, aged 54, is an executive director of Grand Field Group Holdings Limited (Stock

Code115). Mr. Wong is a fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and the Hong

Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He has more than 25 years’ extensive experiences in auditing,

corporate and financial management with a number of companies in different business sectors which include

an international accounting firm and local listed companies. Mr. Wong joined the Group in 2005.
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Senior Management

Group Affairs

Mr. YAN Man Sing Frankie, aged 49, is the Chief Operation Officer of the Group. Mr. Yan has over 20 years

experience in the securities and properties investment industries and having exposures in the mergers and

acquisitions and IPOs exercises in Hong Kong and the PRC. He is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute

of Certified Public Accountants and worked in London and Hong Kong offices of an international auditing firm,

local listed companies and brokerage houses. He joined the Group in 2005.

Mr. LAW Chun Choi, aged 47, is the Financial Controller of the Group and the Qualified Accountant and the

Company Secretary of the Company. He is a rich-experienced accountant. Mr. Law has extensive experience in

diversified business in Asia-Pacific. Mr. Law gradated from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University with a

Postgraduate Diploma in Corporate Administration and Professional Diploma in Accountancy. He is a fellow

member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, the Chartered Association of Certified

Accountants, the Hong Kong Institute of Company Secretaries and the Institute of Chartered Secretaries and

Administrators. He joined the Group in 2005.

Leather Business

Mr. Lee Sam Yuen, John, aged 57, over 30 years of experience in leather trading and distribution. Mr. Lee has

been a director of Dah Haw Leather & Trading Company Limited, a subsidiary of the Company, since its

incorporation in 1979. He holds a Bachelor’s degree in Management from the Purdue University of the U.S.A.

and a honourable Ph. D degree in Business from the Southern California University of the U.S.A. Mr. Lee is

responsible for the distribution and trading of leather business of the Group. He joined the Group in 1974.

Ms. NG Fung Ying, aged 57, is a Director of a subsidiary of the Group. Ms. Ng has more than 36 years of

experience in the leather industry and is responsible for the manufacturing and sales of the handbags division.

She joined the Group in 1981. She is the sister of Mr. Ng Hoi Chun.

Mr. NG Hoi Chun, aged 46, has more than 23 years of experience in the leatherware industry and is responsible

for the operation of the leatherware division. Mr. Ng joined the Group in 1981. He is the brother of Ms. Ng

Fung Ying.
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Principal Activities

The Company is primarily an investment holding company and its investment portfolio includes (i) hotel and

real estate investments; (ii) property development; and (iii) trading of leather products.

Major Customers and Suppliers

The information in respect of the group’s sales and purchases attributable to the major customers and suppliers

respectively during the financial year under review is as follows:

Percentage of the

group’s total

Sales Purchases

The largest customer 7%

Five largest customers in aggregate 25%

The largest supplier 13%

Five largest suppliers in aggregate 46%

At no time during the year under review have the directors, their associates or any shareholder of the company

(which to the knowledge of the directors owns more than 5% of the company’s share capital) had any interest in

these major customers and suppliers.

Financial Summary

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for the past five financial years is set out

on page 109 of the financial statements.

Results and Dividends

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2006 are set out in the consolidated income

statement on page 32 of this annual report.

The state of the Company’s and the Group’s affairs as at 31 December 2006 are set out in the balance sheet on

pages 33 to 34 of this annual report.

The Board of Directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend for the year ended 31 December 2006.
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Property, Plant and Equipment

Details of significant changes in the property, plant and equipment of the Group during the review period are

set out in Note 17 to the financial statements.

Share Capital

Movements in share capital of the Group and the Company during the under review are set out in Note 32 to

the financial statements.

Reserves

Movements in reserves of the Group and the Company during the review period are set out in Note 33 to the

accompanying financial statements.

Purchase, Sale and Redemption of Shares

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed

shares during the year ended 31 December 2006.

Pre-emptive Rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s Articles of Association or the laws of the

Cayman Islands, which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rate basis to existing shareholders.

Subsidiaries and Associates

Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries and associates are set out in Notes 19 and 20 to the financial

statements.

Bank Loans and other Borrowings

Particulars of bank borrowings as at 31 December 2006 are set out in Note 28 to the financial statements.

Retirement Schemes

Details of the retirement benefits scheme of the Group are set out in Note 13 to the financial statements.
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Corporate Governance

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard of corporate governance and has complied throughout

the review period with the Code of Best Practice as set out in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of

Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”).

Further information on the Company’s corporate governance practices is set out on pages 10 to 16 of this

annual report.

Directors and Directors’ Service Contracts

The directors who held office during the review period and at the date of this report are:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Law Kar Po, Vice Chairman

Mr. Hoi Man Pak

Mr. Choy Wang Kong (appointed on 20 April 2007)

Mr. Yong Wing Tai, William (appointed on 20 April 2007)

Mr. Chiang Kin Tong (appointed on 20 April 2007)

Ms. Law Wing Yee, Wendy

Ms. Lee Siu Yuk, Eliza

Mr. Chiang Pedro, Chairman (resigned on 20 April 2007)

Mr. Wu Ka I, Miguel, Chief Executive Officer (resigned on 20 April 2007)

Mr. Ung Choi Kun (resigned on 20 April 2007)

Mr. Lee Sam Yuen, John (resigned on 1 May 2006)

Non-executive Director:

Mr. Leonel Alberto Alves

Mr. Chui Sai Cheong (resigned on 25 August 2006))

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Lau Wai Ming

Mr. Kwok Hong Yee, Jesse

Mr. Wong King Lam, Joseph

In accordance with the provisions of the Company’s Articles of Association, Mr. Hoi Man Pak, Ms. Law Wing

Yee Wendy, and Mr. Leonel Alberto Alves shall retire from the Board at the forthcoming Annual General

Meeting of the Company and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.
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Mr. Choy Wang Kong, Mr. Yong Wing Tai, William and Mr. Chiang Kin Tong were appointed as Executive

Directors of the Company on 20 April 2007, they will hold office until the forthcoming Annual General Meeting

of the Company and will be eligible for re-election in accordance with the articles of association of the

Company.

The term of office of each non-executive director is the period up to his retirement by rotation in accordance

with the Company’s Articles of Association.

Directors’ Service Contracts

None of the Directors had any existing or propose service contract with the Company or any member of the

Group which is not expiring or terminable by the Group within one year without payment of compensation

(other than statutory compensation).

Directors’ Interests in Securities

As at 31 December 2006, the interests and short positions of the Directors and chief executive of the Company

in the shares, Underlying shares and debentures of the Company and its associated corporation (within the

meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”)) which (a) were required to be notified

to the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”) pursuant to Divisions 7 and

8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions which they are taken or deemed to have under

such provisions of the SFO); or (b) were required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the

register referred to therein; or (c) were required, pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by

Directors of Listed Issuers set out in Appendix 10 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock

Exchange (the “Listing Rules”), to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange were as follows:

(a) Long position in the ordinary shares of HK$0.05 each (“shares”) of the Company

% to the Issued

Share Capital

Name of Director Capacity Number of Shares of the Company

Mr. Law Kar Po Beneficial owner 361,286,000 12.76

Mr. Hoi Man Pak Beneficial owner 84,976,600 3.00

Interest of spouse (Note) 136,000 0.01

Mr. Chiang Pedro Beneficial owner 153,640,520 5.43

Mr. Wu Ka I, Miguel Beneficial owner 35,067,140 1.24

Mr. Ung Choi Kun Beneficial owner 2,200,000 0.08

Note: These Shares are held by Ms. Wong Sao Lai, spouse of Mr. Hoi Man Pak.
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(b) Long position in the underlying shares

(i) Long position in the listed warrants (“HONESTY W0906”) of the Company

Number of Underlying % to the

Shares (in respect of Issued Share

“HONESTY W0906” Capital of

Name of Director Capacity held (Note 1) the Company

Mr. Law Kar Po Beneficial owner 26,502,200 0.94

Mr. Hoi Man Pak Beneficial owner 8,497,600 0.30

Interest of spouse (Note 2) 13,600 0.01

Mr. Chiang Pedro Beneficial owner 15,364,052 0.54

Mr. Wu Ka I, Miguel Beneficial owner 3,506,714 0.12

Mr. Ung Choi Kun Beneficial owner 220,000 0.01

Notes:

1. HONESTY W0906 entitle the holders to subscribe for new Shares at a price of HK$0.26 per Share

(subject to adjustment) until 6 June 2009.

2. HONESTY W0906 are held by Ms. Wong Sao Lai, spouse of Mr. Hoi Man Pak.

(ii) Long position in the unlisted 2.5% fixed interest convertible redeemable notes (“CNs”) of the

Company

Number of Underlying

Shares and % to the

Amount of Issued Share Capital

Name of Director Capacity CNs HK$ (Note 1) of The Company

Mr. Law Kar Po Beneficial owner 22,773,565 153,875,439 (5.44)

Mr. Hoi Man Pak Beneficial owner 13,664,137 92,325,250 (3.26)

Mr. Chiang Pedro Beneficial owner 36,437,703 246,200,696 (8.70)

Interest of spouse (Note 2) 4,554,713  30,775,088 (1.08)

Mr. Wu Ka I, Miguel Beneficial owner 4,554,713 30,775,087 (1.09)

Notes:

1. Holders of the CNs are entitled to elect to convert the CNs into Shares at the conversion price of

HK$0.148 per Share (subject to adjustment) until 27 April 2011.

2. These underlying Shares are held by Ms. Leong Lai Heng, spouse of Mr. Chiang Pedro.
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(iii) Long position in the unlisted warrants of the Company (“Warrants”)

Mr. Ung Choi Kun, as beneficial owner, directly held 5,000,000 Warrants carrying the rights to

subscribe for 5,000,000 new Shares (representing approximately 0.18% of the issued share capital

of the Company) of the Company) at a subscription price of HK$0.35 per share (subject to

adjustment) until 20 July 2007.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2006, none of the Directors or chief executive of the

Company had any interest or short position in the Shares, underlying Shares or debentures of the

Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of the SFO) which were

required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Division 7 and 8 Part

XV of the SFO (including any interests and short positions which they were taken or deemed to

have under such provisions of the SFO) or which were required, pursuant to the Model Code for

Securities Transactions by Directors of Listing Companies set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing

Rules, to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange.

Substantial Shareholders

As at 31 December 2006, according to the register of interest kept by the Company under Section 336 of the

SFO and so far as was known to the Directors or chief executive of the Company, the following persons had an

interest or short position in the Shares and underlying Shares which would fall to be disclosed to the Company

under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, who were, directly or indirectly, interested in

5% or more of the nominal value of any class of share capital (including any options in respect of such capital)

carrying rights to vote in all circumstances at general meetings of any other member of the Group:

Number of Percentage

Name issued shares holding

Mr. Law Kar Po 361,286,000 12.76%

Mr. Chiang Pedro 153,640,520 5.43%
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As at 31 December 2006, so far as is known to the Directors or the chief executive of the Company, the

following persons (other than the Directors or chief executive of the Company) had an interest or short position

in the Shares and underlying Shares which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of

Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under

Section 336 of SFO:

(a) Long position in the Shares

% to the Issued

Share Capital

Name of shareholder Capacity Number of Shares of the Company

Ms. Leong Lai Heng Interest of spouse (Note 1) 153,640,520 5.43%

Ms. Wong Sao Lai Beneficial owner 136,000 0.01%

Interest of spouse (Note 2) 84,976,600 3.00%

Notes:

(1) These Shares are held by Mr. Chiang Pedro, the spouse of Ms. Leong Lai Heng.

(2) These Shares are held by Mr. Hoi Man Pak, the spouse of Ms. Wong Sao Lai.

(b) Long position in the underlying Shares

% to the Issued

Share Capital

Name of shareholder Capacity Number of underlying Shares of the Company

Ms. Leong Lai Heng Beneficial owner (Note 1) 30,775,088 1.08

Interest of spouse (Note 2) 261,564,748 9.24

Ms. Wong Sao Lai Beneficial owner (Note 3) 13,600 0.01

Interest of spouse (Note 4) 100,822,910 3.56

Notes:

(1) These underlying Shares are CNs.

(2) These underlying Shares (HONESTY WO906 and CNs) are held by Mr. Chiang Pedro, the spouse of Ms. Leong

Lai Heng.

(3) These underlying Shares are HONESTY WO906.

(4) These underlying Shares (HONESTY WO906 and CNs) are held by Mr. Hoi Man Pak, the spouse of Ms. Wong

Sao Lai.
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2006, no person (other than Directors or chief executive of the

Company) had an interest or a short position in the Shares and underlying Shares as recorded in the register

required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.

Directors’ and Senior Management’s Biographies

Biographical details of the Directors and the senior management of the Group are set out on pages 17 to 20 of

this annual report.

Directors’ Interest in Contracts

Except for the related party transactions as disclosed in the accompanying financial statements, no other

contracts of significance to which the Company, its holding company or subsidiaries was a party and in which a

director of the Company had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the

review period under review or at any time during the period under review.

Management Contracts

No contract concerning the management and administration of the whole or any substantial part of the business

of the Company were entered into or existed during the year under review.

Post Balance Sheet Events

Details of the significant post balance sheet events of the Group are set out in note 42 to the financial

statements.

Audit Committee

The audit committee of the Company (“Audit Committee”) presently comprises three independent non-executive

Directors. The Audit Committee has reviewed with the management and the Company’s external auditors the

accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group and discussed auditing, internal control and financial

reporting process including the review of the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2006.

Public Float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and within the knowledge of the Directors

as at the latest practiable date prior to issue of this report, the Company has maintained the prescribed amount

of public float as required under the Listing Rules.
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Donations

Charitable and other donations made by the Group during the year under review amounted to HK$211,000.

Auditors

The accompanying financial statements were audited by Messrs CCIF CPA Limited. A resolution for their re-

appointment as the Company’s auditors for the ensuring year is to be proposed at the forthcoming annual

general meeting of the Company.

On behalf of the Board of Directors

Law Kar Po

Vice Chairman

Hong Kong, 20 April 2007
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Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of

Honesty Treasure International Holdings Limited

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Honesty Treasure International Holdings Limited (the

“Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 32 to 108 which comprise the consolidated and

company balance sheets as at 31 December 2006, and the consolidated income statement, the consolidated

statement of changes in equity and the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended, and a

summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

Directors’ responsibility for the financial statements

The directors of the company are responsible for the preparation and the true and fair presentation of these

financial statements in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong

Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

This responsibility includes designing, implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation

and the true and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due

to fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that

are reasonable in the circumstances.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit and to report our

opinion solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept

liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong

Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and

plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the financial statements are free from

material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the

financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of

the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those

risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and true and fair

presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the

circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal

control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness

of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial

statements.
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our

audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the

Company and of the Group as at 31 December 2006 and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the year then

ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in

accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

CCIF CPA Limited

Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 20 April 2007

Betty P.C. Tse

Practising Certificate Number P03024
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9 months

Year ended ended

31/12/2006 31/12/2005

Note HK$’000 HK$’000

Continuing operations
Turnover 3 72,873 63,949
Direct costs (51,290) (49,236)

21,583 14,713

Other revenue 4 2,260 904
Other net income 4 438 115
Selling and distribution costs (3,312) (2,650)
General and administrative expenses (35,169) (22,508)

Loss from operations (14,200) (9,426)
Finance costs 6 (6,528) (179)
Share of results of associates 7 95,465 86,314

Profit before taxation 74,737 76,709
Taxation 8(a) — —

Profit after taxation from continuing operations 74,737 76,709

Discontinued operations
Loss from discontinued operations 9 (17,437) (40,524)

Profit for the year/period 10 57,300 36,185

Attributable to:
— Equity holders of the Company 14, 33(a) 57,246 38,399
— Minority interests 33(a) 54 (2,214)

Profit for the year/period 33(a) 57,300 36,185

Earnings per share (HK cents per share)

Basic
For continuing and discontinued operations 15(a) 2.09 1.78

For continuing operations 15(b) 2.73 3.55

Diluted
For continuing and discontinued operations 15(a) 1.93 N/A

For continuing operations 15(b) 2.48 N/A

The notes on pages 38 to 108 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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2006 2005

Note HK$’000 HK$’000

Non-current assets
Investment property 16 61,114 —
Property, plant and equipment 17 5,956 15,723
Properties under development 18 389,267 72,731
Interests in associates 20 657,906 606,349
Goodwill 21 — —

1,114,243 694,803

Current assets
Trading securities 22 43 66
Inventories 23 7,748 12,335
Properties held for sale 24 85,662 —
Trade and other receivables 25 19,014 19,698
Cash and cash equivalents 26 35,495 19,517

147,962 51,616

Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 27 154,285 97,576
Bank loans 28 289,245 39,788
Obligations under finance leases 29 13 253

443,543 137,617

Net current liabilities (295,581) (86,001)

Total assets less current liabilities 818,662 608,802

Non-current liabilities
Convertible notes 30 77,527 —
Obligations under finance leases 29 — 64
Provision for long service payments 31 934 934

(78,461) (998)

NET ASSETS 740,201 607,804

CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Share capital 32 141,541 121,541
Reserves 33(a) 598,387 485,866

Total equity attributable to equity holders of the Company 739,928 607,407

Minority interests 33(a) 273 397

TOTAL EQUITY 740,201 607,804

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 20 April 2007

Law Kar Po Lee Siu Yuk, Eliza

Director Director

The notes on pages 38 to 108 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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2006 2005

Note HK$’000 HK$’000

Non-current assets

Investments in subsidiaries 19 1 2,100

Current assets

Trade and other receivables 25 634,644 576,536

Cash and cash equivalents 26 25,584 6,311

660,228 582,847

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables 27 4,625 19,368

Net current assets 655,603 563,479

Non-current liabilities

Convertible notes 30 77,527 —

NET ASSETS 578,077 565,579

CAPITAL AND RESERVES

Share capital 32 141,541 121,541

Reserves 33(b) 436,536 444,038

TOTAL EQUITY 578,077 565,579

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 20 April 2007

Law Kar Po Lee Siu Yuk, Eliza

Director Director

The notes on pages 38 to 108 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Attributable to equity holders of the Company
(Accumulated

Capital Convertible losses)/
Share Share redemption notes equity Warrant Exchange Retained Minority Total

capital premium reserve reserve reserve reserve earnings Total interests Equity
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

At 1 April 2005 98,531 660,795 69 — — (220 ) (214,962 ) 544,213 2,563 546,776
Issue of shares at

a premium
through placing 3,000 17,410 — — — — — 20,410 — 20,410

Capitalisation by
a placement 20,010 (20,010 ) — — — — — — — —

Acquisition of
a subsidiary — — — — — — — — 48 48

Expenses on
capitalization
of premium — (320 ) — — — — — (320 ) — (320 )

Issue of unlisted
warrants — — — — 4,950 — — 4,950 — 4,950

Exchange differences
on translation of
financial statements
of foreign
subsidiaries — — — — — (245 ) — (245 ) — (245 )

Profit for the period — — — — — — 38,399 38,399 (2,214 ) 36,185
Share premium set-off

against accumulated
losses — (218,856 ) — — — — 218,856 — — —

At 31 December 2005
and
1 January 2006 121,541 439,019 69 — 4,950 (465 ) 42,293 607,407 397 607,804

Issue of shares by
a placement 20,000 39,200 — — — — — 59,200 — 59,200

Acquisition of
subsidiaries — — — — — — — — (178 ) (178 )

Issue of convertible
notes — — — 17,119 — — — 17,119 — 17,119

Share issue expenses — (767 ) — — — — — (767 ) — (767 )
Exchange differences

on translation of
financial statements
of foreign
subsidiaries — — — — — (277 ) — (277 ) — (277 )

Profit for the year — — — — — — 57,246 57,246 54 57,300
Share premium set-off

against accumulated
losses — (63,054 ) — — — — 63,054 — — —

At 31 December 2006 141,541 414,398 69 17,119 4,950 (742 ) 162,593 739,928 273 740,201

Reserves retained by:

At 31 December 2006
— Company and

subsidiaries 141,541 414,398 69 17,119 4,950 (742 ) (24,574 ) 552,761 273 553,034
— Associates — — — — — — 187,167 187,167 — 187,167

141,541 414,398 69 17,119 4,950 (742 ) 162,593 739,928 273 740,201

At 31 December 2005
— Company and

subsidiaries 121,541 439,019 69 — 4,950 (465 ) (49,173 ) 515,941 397 516,338
— Associates — — — — — — 91,466 91,466 — 91,466

121,541 439,019 69 — 4,950 (465 ) 42,293 607,407 397 607,804

The notes on pages 38 to 108 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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9 months

Year ended ended

31/12/2006 31/12/2005

Note HK$’000 HK$’000

Operating activities

Profit before taxation 8(b) 57,300 36,229

Adjustments for:

Depreciation 2,686 2,073

Impairment loss for bad and doubtful debts 582 —

Impairment loss on goodwill — 30,160

Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment 2,301 28

Net realized and unrealised loss/(gain) on trading securities 7 (25)

Interest income (1,198) (144)

Finance costs 6,544 191

Share of results of associates (95,555) (86,140)

Loss on disposal of subsidiaries 4,820 —

Reversal of provision for long service payments — (47)

Operating loss before changes in working capital (22,513) (17,675)

Decrease in inventories 4,587 6,517

Increase in properties held for sale (85,662) —

(Increase)/decrease in trade and other receivables (1,081) 2,927

(Decrease)/increase in trade and other payables (4,309) 1,526

(Decrease)/increase in bills payable (353) 60

Decrease in provision for long service payments — (947)

Cash used in operations (109,331) (7,592)

Tax paid — (346)

Net cash used in operating activities (109,331) (7,938)
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9 months

Year ended ended

31/12/2006 31/12/2005

Note HK$’000 HK$’000

Investing activities

Acquisition of subsidiaries, net of cash acquired 35(a) 11,456 —

Interest received 1,198 144

Dividend received from associates 43,262 —

Increase in pledged deposits (100) —

Net cash inflow upon disposal of interests in subsidiaries 35(b) 1,071 —

Purchase of investment properties (61,114) —

Purchase of property, plant and equipment (930) (3,448)

Purchase of properties under development (12,379) (72,197)

Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment 697 —

Proceeds from disposal of trading securities 16 11

Net cash used in investing activities (16,823) (75,490)

Financing activities

Capital element of finance lease rentals paid (253) (250)

Loan payable 35 52,200

Repayment of loan notes (15,000) (5,156)

Net proceeds from issue of new shares 58,433 20,090

Proceeds from new bank loans 99,457 —

Increase in amount due to minority interests 1,574 19,438

(Decrease)/increase in amount due to related companies (913) 913

Increase/(decrease) in due to an ex-director 817 (1,700)

Proceeds from issue of unlisted warrants — 4,950

Interest element of finance lease rentals paid (23) (14)

Other borrowing costs paid (1,732) —

Net cash generated from financing activities 142,395 90,471

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 16,241 7,043

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year/period 19,517 12,818

Effect of foreign rate changes (363) (344)

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year/period 26 35,395 19,517

The notes on pages 38 to 108 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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1. General Information

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 16 June 1992 as an exempted company with

limited liability under the Companies Law, Cap 22 (Law 2 of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of the

Cayman Islands. The shares of the Company are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the

“Stock Exchange”).

The Company (with its subsidiaries, collectively referred to as the “Group”) is an investment holding

company. Its subsidiaries are principally engaged in property development, trading of leatherware products

and real estate investment. The Group was also engaged in the retailing, and healthcare and medical

related businesses, which were discontinued in the current year (see note 9).

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars, which is the same as the

functional currency of the Company.

2. Significant Accounting Policies

(a) Statement of Compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong

Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”), which collective term includes all applicable individual

Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and

Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”),

accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements of the

Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. These financial statements also comply with the applicable

disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of

Hong Kong Limited. A summary of the significant accounting policies adopted by the Group is set

out below.

The HKICPA has issued the following new and revised HKFRSs that are first effective or available

for early adoption for the current accounting period of the Group and the Company.

HKFRS 6 Exploration for and Evaluation of Mineral Resources

Amendment to HKAS 19 Employee Benefits — Actuarial Gains and Losses, Group Plans

and Disclosures

Amendment to HKAS 21 The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates

— Net Investment in a Foreign Operation
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2. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

(a) Statement of Compliance (Continued)

Amendment to HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement

• “Cash Flow Hedge Accounting of Forecast Intragroup

Transactions”

• “The Fair Value Option”

Amendments to HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement and

and HKFRS 4 Insurance Contracts — Financial Guarantee Contracts

HK(IFRIC) — Int 4 Determining whether an Arrangement Contains a Lease

HK(IFRIC) — Int 5 Rights to Interests arising from Decommissioning, Restoration

and Environmental Rehabilitation Funds

HK(IFRIC) — Int 6 Liabilities arising from Participating in a Specific Market

— Waste Electrical and Electronic Equipment (effective

for annual periods beginning on or after 1 December 2005)

The adoption of these new and revised HKFRSs did not result in significant change to the Group’s

accounting policies applied on these financial statements for the pervious accounting periods

presented and had no significant impact on the results or the financial position of the Group and

the Company for current and previous accounting periods. The Group has not applied any new

standard or interpretation that is not yet effective for the current accounting period (see note 45).

(b) Basis of preparation of financial statements

In 2005, the Company changed its year end date from 31 March to 31 December so as to have the

year end date to be coterminous among the companies within the Group.

The financial statements for the current period cover the year ended 31 December 2006. The

corresponding amounts shown for the consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement

of changes in equity, the consolidated cash flow statement and related notes cover a nine month

period from 1 April 2005 to 31 December 2005 and therefore might not be comparable with

amounts shown for the current period.
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2. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

(b) Basis of preparation of financial statements (Continued)

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2006 comprise the Company

and its subsidiaries (together referred to as the “Group”) and the Group’s interest in associates.

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the financial statements is the historical cost

basis except that the following assets and liabilities are stated at their fair value set out below:

— investment property (see note 2(g)); and

— financial instrument classified as trading securities (see note 2(f)).

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRSs requires management to make

judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported amounts

of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on

historical experience and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the

circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making the judgements about carrying values

of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ

from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to

accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision

affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects

both current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application of HKFRSs that have significant effect on the

financial statements and estimates with a significant risk of material adjustment in the next year

are discussed in note 44.
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2. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

(c) Subsidiaries and minority interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. Control exists when the Group has the power to

govern the financial and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from their activities.

In assessing control, potential voting rights that presently are exercisable are taken into account.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the consolidated financial statements, from the

date that control commences until the date that control ceases. Intra-group balances and transactions

and any unrealised profits arising from intra-group transactions are eliminated in full in preparing

the consolidated financial statements. Unrealised losses resulting from intra-group transactions

are eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains but only to the extent that there is no evidence

of impairment.

Minority interests represent the portion of the net assets of subsidiaries attributable to interests

that are not owned by the Company, whether directly or indirectly through subsidiaries, and in

respect of which the Group has not agreed any additional terms with the holders of those interests

which would result in the Group as a whole having a contractual obligation in respect of those

interests that meets the definition of a financial liability. Minority interests are presented in the

consolidated balance sheet within equity, separately from equity attributable to the equity

shareholders of the Company. Minority interests in the results of the Group are presented on the

face of the consolidated income statement as an allocation of the total profit or loss for the year

between minority interests and the equity shareholders of the Company.

Where losses applicable to the minority exceed the minority’s interests in the equity of a subsidiary,

the excess, and any further losses attributable to the minority, are charged against the Group’s

interest except to the extent that the minority has a binding obligation to, and is able to, make

additional investment to cover the losses. If the subsidiary subsequently report profits, the Group’s

interest is allocated all such profits until the minority’s share of losses previously absorbed by the

Group has been recovered.

Loans from holders of minority interests and other contractual obligations towards these holders

are presented as financial liabilities in the consolidated balance sheet in accordance with notes

2(o), (p) or (q) depending on the nature of the liability.

In the Company’s balance sheet, an investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less any impairment

losses (see note 2(k)).
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2. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

(d) Associates

An associate is an entity in which the Group or Company has significant influence, but not

control or joint control, over its management, including participation in the financial and operating

policy decisions.

An investment in an associate is accounted for in the consolidated financial statements under the

equity method and is initially recorded at cost and adjusted thereafter for the post acquisition

change in the Group’s share of the associate’s net assets. The consolidated income statement

includes the Group’s share of post acquisition, post-tax results of the associates for the year,

including any impairment loss on goodwill relating to the investment in associates recognised for

the year (see notes 2(e) and (k)).

When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its interest in the associate, the Group’s interest is

reduced to nil and recognition of further losses is discontinued except to the extent that the Group

has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate. For

this purpose, the Group’s interest in the associate is the carrying amount of the investment under

the equity method together with the Group’s long-term interests that in substance form part of the

Group’s net investment in the associate.

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from transactions between the Group and its associate are

eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interest in the associate, except where unrealised losses

provide evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred, in which case they are recognised

immediately in profit or loss.

(e) Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of a business combination or an investment in an

associate over the Group’s interest in the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets,

liabilities and contingent liabilities.

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is allocated to cash-

generating units and is tested annually for impairment (see note 2(k)). In respect of associates, the

carrying amount of goodwill is included in the carrying amount of the interest in the associate.

Any excess of the Group’s interest in the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets,

liabilities and contingent liabilities over the cost of a business combination or an investment in an

associate is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

On disposal of a cash generating unit or an associate during the year, any attributable amount of

purchased goodwill is included in the calculation of the profit or loss on disposal.
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2. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

(f) Other investments in equity securities

The Group’s and the Company’s policies for investments in equity securities other than investments

in subsidiaries and associates are as follows:

Investments in equity securities are initially stated at cost, which is their transaction price unless

fair value can be more reliably estimated using valuation techniques whose variables include only

data from observable markets. Costs include attributable transactions costs, except where indicated

otherwise below. These investments are subsequently accounted for as follows, depending on their

classification:

Investments in securities held for trading are classified as current assets. Any attributable transaction

costs are recognised in profit or loss as incurred. At each balance sheet date the fair value is

remeasured, with any resultant gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss.

Investments in equity securities that do not have a quoted market price in an active market and

whose fair value cannot be reliably measured are recognised in the balance sheet at cost less

impairment losses (see note 2(k)).

Investments in securities which do not fall into any of the above categories are classified as

available-for-sales securities. At each balance sheet date the fair value is remeasured, with any

resultant gain or loss being recognised directly in equity, except foreign exchange gains and losses

in respect of monetary items such as debt securities which are recognised directly in profit or loss.

Where these investments are interest-bearing, interest calculated using the effective interest method

is recognised in profit or loss. When these investments are derecognised or impaired (see note

2(k)), the cumulative gain or loss previously recognized directly in equity is recognised in profit or

loss.

Investments are recognised/derecognised on the date the Group and/or the Company commits to

purchase/sell the investments or they expire.

(g) Investment property

Investment properties are land and/or buildings which are owned or held under a leasehold

interest (see note 2(j)) to earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation.

Investment properties are stated in the balance sheet at fair value. Any gain or loss arising from a

change in fair value or from the retirement or disposal of an investment property is recognised in

profit or loss. Rental income from investment properties is accounted for as described in note

2(v)(ii).
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2. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

(g) Investment property (Continued)

When the Group holds a property interest under an operating lease to earn rental income and/or

for capital appreciation, the interest is classified and accounted for as an investment property on a

property-by-property basis. Any such property interest which has been classified as an investment

property is accounted for as if were held under a finance lease (see note 2(j)), and the same

accounting policies are applied to that interest as are applied to other investment properties

leased under finance leases. Lease payments are accounted for as described in note 2(j).

(h) Properties under development

Properties under development are stated at cost, less any impairment loss. Cost comprises land

costs, direct cost of construction, borrowing costs and other direct costs attributable to the

development.

(i) Other property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated in the consolidated balance sheet at cost less accumulated

depreciation and impairment losses (see note 2(k)).

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment

are determined as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of

the item and are recognised in profit or loss on the date of retirement or disposal.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of property, plant and equipment, less

their estimated residual value, if any, using the straight-line method over their estimated useful

lives. The principal annual rates of depreciation are as follows:

Buildings 2-5% or over the lease term, if shorter

Furniture and fixtures 10-20%

Office equipment 10-20%

Plant and machinery 5-20%

Motor vehicles 10-20%

Leasehold improvements Over the lease term

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful life, the cost of the

item is allocated on a reasonable basis between the parts and each part depreciate separately.

Both the useful life of an asset and its residual value, if any, are reviewed annually.
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2. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

(j) Leased assets

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of transactions, is or contains a lease if the

Group determines that the arrangement conveys a right to use a specific asset or assets for an

agreed period of time in return for a payment or a series of payments. Such a determination is

made based on an evaluation of the substance of the arrangement and is regardless of whether the

arrangement takes the legal form of a lease.

(i) Classification of assets leased to the Group

Assets that are held by Group under leases which transfer to the Group substantially all the

risks and rewards of ownership are classified as being held under finance leases. Leases

which do not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the Group are

classified as operating leases, except for land held for own use under an operating lease,

the cost of which cannot be measured separately from the cost of a building situated

thereon at the inception of the lease, is accounted for as being held under a finance lease,

unless the building is also clearly held under an operating lease. For these purposes, the

inception of the lease is the time that the lease was first entered into by the Group, or taken

over from the previous lessee, or at the date of construction of those buildings, if later.

(ii) Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets under operating leases, payments made under the

leases are charged to profit or loss in equal instalments over the accounting periods covered

by the lease term. Lease incentives received are recognised in profit or loss as an integral

part of the aggregate net lease payments made. Contingent rentals are charged to profit or

loss in the accounting period in which they are incurred.
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2. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

(k) Impairment of assets

(i) Impairment of investments in equity securities and other receivables

Investments in equity securities and other current and non-current receivables that are

stated at cost or amortised cost are reviewed at each balance sheet date to determine

whether there is objective evidence of impairment. If any such evidence exists, any

impairment loss is determined and recognised as follows:

— For unquoted equity securities carried at cost, the impairment loss is measured as

the difference between the carrying amount of the financial asset and the estimated

future cash flows, discounted at the current market rate of return for a similar

financial asset where the effect of discounting is material. Impairment losses for

equity securities are not reversed.

— For trade and other current receivables and other financial assets carried at amortised

cost, the impairment loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying

amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the

financial asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e. effective interest rate computed at

initial recognition of these assets), where the effect of discounting is material. If in a

subsequent period the amount of an impairment loss decreases and the decrease can

be linked objectively to an event occurring after the impairment loss was recognised,

the impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss. A reversal of an impairment

loss shall not result in the asset’s carrying amount exceeding that which would have

been determined had no impairment loss been recognised in prior years.

Internal and external sources of information are reviewed at each balance sheet date to

identify indications that the following assets may be impaired or, except in the case of

goodwill, an impairment loss previously recognised no longer exists or may have decreased:

— property, plant and equipment;

— investments in subsidiaries and associates; and

— goodwill.
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2. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

(k) Impairment of assets (Continued)

(ii) Impairment of other assets

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. In addition, for

goodwill, intangible assets that are not yet available for use and intangible assets hat have

indefinite useful lives, the recoverable amount is estimated annually whether or not there is

any indication of impairment.

— Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater of its net selling price and value is

use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their

present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments

of time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. Where an asset does not

generate cash inflows largely independent of those from other assets, the recoverable

amount is determined for the smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows

independently (i.e. a cash-generating unit).

— Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss whenever the carrying amount of

an asset, or the cash-generating unit to which it belongs, exceeds its recoverable

amount. Impairment losses recognised in respect of cash-generating units are allocated

first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the cash-generating

unit (or group of units) and then, to reduce the carrying amount of the other assets in

the unit (or group of units) on a pro rata basis, except that the carrying value of an

asset will not be reduced below its individual fair value less costs to sell, or value in

use, if determinable.

— Reversals of impairment losses

In respect of assets other than goodwill, an impairment loss is reversed if there has

been a favourable change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount.

An impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not reversed.

A reversal of impairment losses is limited to the asset’s carrying amount that would

have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised in prior years.

Reversals of impairment losses are credited to profit or loss in the year in which the

reversals are recognised.
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2. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

(l) Inventories

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Cost is calculated using the first-in first-out basis and comprises all costs of purchase, costs of

conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and

condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the

estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those inventories is recognised as an expense

in the period in which the related revenue is recognised. The amount of any write-down of

inventories to net realisable value and all losses of inventories are recognised as an expense in the

period the write-down or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal of any write-down of inventories

is recognised as a reduction in the amount of inventories recognised as an expense in the period

in which the reversal occurs.

(m) Properties held for sale

Properties held for sale are classified under current assets and stated at lower cost and net

realizable value. Net realizable value represents the estimated selling price as determined by

reference to management estimates based on prevailing market conditions, less costs to be incurred

in selling the property.

(n) Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are initially recognised at fair value and thereafter stated at amortised

costs less impairment losses for bad and doubtful debts (see note 2(k)), except where the receivables

are interest free loans made to related parties without any fixed repayment terms or the effect of

discounting would be immaterial. In such cases, the receivables are stated at cost less impairment

losses for bad and doubtful debts (see note 2(k)).
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2. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

(o) Convertible notes

Convertible notes that can be converted to equity share capital at the option of the holders, where

the number of shares that would be issued on conversion and the value of the consideration that

would be received at that time do not vary, are accounted for as compound financial instruments

which contain both a liability component and an equity component. At initial recognition the

liability component of the convertible notes is measured as the present value of the future interest

and principal payments, discounted at the market rate of interest applicable at the time of initial

recognition to similar liabilities that do not have a conversion option. Any excess of proceeds over

the amount initially recognised as the liability component is recognised as the equity component.

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of a compound financial instrument are allocated to the

liability and equity components in proportion to the allocation of proceeds.

The liability component is subsequently carried at amortised cost. The interest expense recognised

in profit or loss on the liability component is calculated using the effective interest method. The

equity component is recognised in the capital reserve until either the note is converted or redeemed.

If the note is converted, the capital reserve, together with the carrying amount of the liability

component at the time of conversion, is transferred to share capital and share premium as

consideration for the shares issued. If the note is redeemed, the capital reserve is released directly

to retained profits.

(p) Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at fair value less attributable transaction costs.

Subsequent to initial recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are stated at amortised cost with

any difference between the amount initially recognised and redemption value being recognised in

profit or loss over the period of the borrowings, together with any interest and fees payable, using

the effective interest method. Bills discounted with recourse are not derecognised from the balance

sheet until actual settlement on maturity, and the related advances from banks in respect of

discounted bills are classified as secured bank loans.

(q) Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair value and thereafter stated at amortised

cost unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.
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2. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

(r) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on hand, demand deposits with banks, and

short term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and

which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, having been within three months of

maturity at acquisition. Bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand and form an integral part of

the Group’s cash management are also included as a component of cash and cash equivalents for

the purpose of the consolidated cash flow statement.

(s) Employee benefits

(i) Short term employee benefits and contributions to defined contribution retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, contributions to defined contribution retirement plans and the

cost of non-monetary benefits are accrued in the year in which the associated services are

rendered by employees. Where payment or settlement is deferred and the effect would be

material, these amounts are stated at their present values.

(ii) Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised when, and only when the Group demonstrably commits

itself to terminate employment or to provide benefits as a result of voluntary redundancy by

having a detailed formal plan which is without realistic possibility of withdrawal.

(t) Income tax

(i) Income tax for the year comprises current tax and movements in deferred tax assets and

liabilities. Current tax and movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised

in profit or loss except to the extent that they relate to items recognised directly in equity,

in which case they are recognised in equity.

(ii) Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year, using tax rates

enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date, and any adjustment to tax

payable in respect of previous years.

(iii) Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible and taxable temporary differences

respectively, being the differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for

financial reporting purposes and their tax bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from unused

tax losses and unused tax credits.
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2. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

(t) Income tax (Continued)

(iii) (Continued)

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax liabilities, and all deferred tax assets

to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which

the asset can be utilised, are recognised. Future taxable profits that may support the

recognition of deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences include

those that will arise from the reversal of existing taxable temporary differences, provided

those differences relate to the same taxation authority and the same taxable entity, and are

expected to reverse either in the same period as the expected reversal of the deductible

temporary difference or in periods into which a tax loss arising from the deferred tax asset

can be carried back or forward. The same criteria are adopted when determining whether

existing taxable temporary differences support the recognition of deferred tax assets arising

from unused tax losses and credits, that is, those differences are taken into account if they

relate to the same taxation authority and the same taxable entity, and are expected to

reverse in a period, or periods, in which the tax loss or credit can be utilised.

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax assets and liabilities are those temporary

differences arising from goodwill not deductible for tax purposes, the initial recognition of

assets or liabilities that affect neither accounting nor taxable profit (provided they are not

part of a business combination), and temporary differences relating to investments in

subsidiaries to the extent that, in the case of taxable differences, the Group controls the

timing of the reversal and it is probable that the differences will not reverse in the foreseeable

future, or in the case of deductible differences, unless it is probable that they will reverse

in the future.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured based on the expected manner of

realisation or settlement of the carrying amount of the assets and liabilities, using tax rates

enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date. Deferred tax assets and liabilities

are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at each balance sheet date and is

reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be

available to allow the related tax benefit to be utilised. Any such reduction is reversed to

the extent that it becomes probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution of dividends are recognised when

the liability to pay the related dividends is recognised.
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2. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

(t) Income tax (Continued)

(iv) Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and movements therein, are presented

separately from each other and are not offset. Current tax assets are offset against current

tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets against deferred tax liabilities, if the Company or the

Group has the legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax

liabilities and the following additional conditions are met:

— in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the Company or the Group intends

either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability

simultaneously; or

— in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if they relate to income taxes levied

by the same taxation authority on either:

— the same taxable entity; or

— different taxable entities, which, in each future period in which significant

amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected to be settled or

recovered, intend to realise the current tax assets and settle the current tax

liabilities on a net basis or realise and settle simultaneously.

(u) Provisions and contingent liabilities

(i) Financial guarantees issued

Financial guarantees are contracts that require the issuer (ie. the guarantor) to make specified

payments to reimburse the beneficiary of the guarantee (the “holder”) for a loss the holder

incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payment when due in accordance with the

terms of a debt instrument.

Where the Group issues a financial guarantee, the fair value of the guarantee (being the

transaction price, unless the fair value can otherwise be reliably estimated) is initially

recognised as deferred income within trade and other payables. Where consideration is

received or receivable for the issuance of the guarantee, the consideration is recognised in

accordance with the Group’s policies applicable to that category of asset. Where no such

consideration is received or receivable, an immediate expense is recognized in profit or

loss on initial recognition of any deferred income.
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2. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

(u) Provisions and contingent liabilities (Continued)

(i) Financial guarantees issued (Continued)

The amount of the guarantee initially recognized as deferred income is amortised in profit

or loss over the term of the guarantee as income from financial guarantees issued. In

addition, provisions are recognized in accordance with note 2(u)(iii) if and when (i) it

becomes probable that the holder of the guarantee will call upon the Group under the

guarantee, and (ii) the amount of that claim on the Group is expected to exceed the

amount currently carried in trade and other payables in respect of that guarantee i.e. the

amount initially recognised, less accumulated amortisation.

(ii) Contingent liabilities acquired in business combinations

Contingent liabilities acquired as part of a business combination are initially recognised at

fair value, provided the fair value can be reliably measured. After their initial recognition at

fair value, such contingent liabilities are recognised at the higher of the amount initially

recognised, less, where appropriate, accumulated amortisation, and the amount that would

be determined in accordance with note 2(u)(iii). Contingent liabilities that cannot be reliably

fair valued are disclosed in accordance with note 2(u)(iii).

(iii) Other provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for other liabilities of uncertain timing or amount when the

Group or the Company has a legal or constructive obligation arising as a result of a past

event, it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the

obligation and a reliable estimate can be made. Where the time value of money is material,

provisions are stated at the present value of the expenditures expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required, or the

amount cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability,

unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,

whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or

more future events, are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of

outflow of economic benefits is remote.
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2. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

(v) Revenue recognition

Provided it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue and

costs, if applicable, can be measured reliably, revenue is recognised in profit or loss as follows:

(i) Sale of goods

Revenue is recognised when the title to the goods and the related risks and rewards of

ownership are passed to customers, the Group retains neither managerial involvement

associated with ownership nor effective control over the goods sold. Revenue excludes

value added tax and is after deduction of any trade discounts.

(ii) Rental income from operating leases

Rental income receivable under operating leases is recognised in profit or loss in equal

instalments over the periods covered by the lease term, except where an alternative basis is

more representative of the pattern of benefits to be derived from the use of the leased asset.

Lease incentives granted are recognised in profit or loss as an integral part of the aggregate

net lease payments receivable. Contingent rentals are recognised as income in the accounting

period in which they are earned.

(iii) Dividends

Dividend income from unlisted investments is recognised when the shareholder’s right to

receive payment is established.

(iv) Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the effective interest method.

(w) Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at

the transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated

at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the balance sheet date. Exchange gains and losses are

recognised in profit or loss, except those arising from foreign currency borrowings used to hedge

a net investment in a foreign operation which are recognised directly in equity.
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2. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

(w) Translation of foreign currencies (Continued)

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign

currency are translated using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates. Non-

monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies that are stated at fair value are

translated using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates the fair value was determined.

The results of foreign operations are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates

approximating the foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates of the transactions. Balance sheet

items, including goodwill arising on consolidation of foreign operations on or after 1 January

2005, are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the balance

sheet date. The resulting exchange differences are recognised directly in a separate component of

equity. On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative amount of the exchange differences

recognised in equity which related to that foreign operation is included in the calculation of the

profit or loss on disposal.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative amount of the exchange differences recognised

in equity which relate to that foreign operation is included in the calculation of the profit or loss

on disposal.

(x) Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are expensed in profit or loss in the period in which they are incurred, except to

the extent that they are capitalized as being directly attributable to the acquisition, construction

or production of an asset which necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its

intended use or sale.

The capitalization of borrowing costs as part of the cost of a qualifying asset commences when

expenditure for the asset is being incurred, borrowing costs are being incurred and activities that

are necessary to prepare the asset for its intended use or sale are in progress. Capitalisation of

borrowing costs is suspended or ceases when substantially all the activities necessary to prepare

the qualifying asset for its intended use or sale are interrupted or complete.



56

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2006

H
o

n
e

st
y 

Tr
e

a
su

re
 I

n
te

rn
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
H

o
ld

in
g

s 
Lt

d

2. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

(y) Non-current assets held for sale and discontinued operations

(i) Non-current assets held for sale

A non-current asset (or disposal group) is classified as held for sale if it is highly probable

that its carrying amount will be recovered through a sale transaction rather than through

continuing use and the asset (or disposal group) is available for sale in its present condition.

A disposal group is a group of assets to be disposed of together as a group in a single

transaction, and liabilities directly associated with those assets that will be transferred in

the transaction.

Immediately before classification as held for sale, the measurement of the non-current

assets (and all individual assets and liabilities in a disposal group) is brought up-to-date in

accordance with the accounting policies before the classification. Then, on initial

classification as held for sale and until disposal, the non-current assets (except for certain

assets as explained below), or disposal groups, are recognised at the lower of their carrying

amount and fair value less costs to sell. The principal exceptions to this measurement

policy so far as the financial statements of the Group are concerned are deferred tax assets,

assets arising from employee benefits, financial assets (other than investments in subsidiaries

and associate) and investment properties. These assets, even if held for sale, would continue

to be measured in accordance with the policies set out elsewhere in note 2.

Impairment losses on initial classification as held for sale, and on subsequent remeasurement

while held for sale, are recognised in profit or loss. As long as a non-current asset is

classified as held for sale, or is included in a disposal group that is classified as held for

sale, the non-current asset is not depreciated or amortised.

(ii) Discontinued operations

A discontinued operation is a component of the group’s business, the operations and cash

flows of which can be clearly distinguished from the rest of the group and which represents

a separate major line of business or geographical area of operations, or is part of a single

co-ordinated plan to dispose of a separate major line of business or geographical area of

operations, or is a subsidiary acquired exclusively with a view to resale.

Classification as a discontinued operation occurs upon disposal or when the operation

meets the criteria to be classified as held for sale (see (i) above), if earlier. It also occurs

when the operation is abandoned.



57

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2006

A
n

n
u

a
l  

R
e

p
o

rt
 2

0
0

6

2. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

(y) Non-current assets held for sale and discontinued operations (Continued)

(ii) Discontinued operations (Continued)

Where an operation is classified as discontinued, a single amount is presented on the face

of the income statement which comprises:

— the post-tax profit or loss of the discontinued operation; and

— the post-tax gain or loss recognised on the measurement to fair value less costs to

sell, or on the disposal, of the assets or disposal group(s) constituting the discontinued

operation.

(z) Related parties

For the purposes of these financial statements, a party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(i) the party has the ability, directly or indirectly through one or more intermediaries, to

control then Group or exercise significant influence over the Group in making financial

and operating policy decisions, or has joint control over the Group;

(ii) the Group and the party are subject to common control;

(iii) the party is an associate of the Group or a joint venture in which the Group is a venturer;

(iv) the party is a member of key management personnel of the Group or the Group’s parent, or

a close family member of such an individual, or is an entity under the control, joint control

or significant influence of such individuals;

(v) the party is a close family member of a party referred to in (i) or is an entity under the

control, joint control or significant influence of such individuals; or

(vi) the party is a post-employment benefit plan which is for the benefit of employees of the

Group or of any entity that is a related party of the Group.

Close family members of an individual are those family members who may be expected to influence,

or be influenced by, that individual in their dealings with the entity.
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2. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

(aa) Segment reporting

A segment is a distinguishable component of the Group that is engaged either in providing

products or services (business segment), or in providing products or services within a particular

economic environment (geographical segment), which is subject to risks and rewards that are

different from those of other segments.

In accordance with the Group’s internal financial reporting system, the Group has chosen business

segment information as the primary reporting format and geographical segment information as the

secondary reporting format for the purposes of theses financial statements based on the location

of assets (being the geographical location of the Group’s production facilities) as the primary

reporting format.

Segment revenue, expenses, results, assets and liabilities include items directly attributable to a

segment as well as those that can be allocated on a reasonable basis to that segment. For example,

segment assets may include inventories, trade receivables and property, plant and equipment.

Segment revenue, expenses, assets, and liabilities are determined before intra-group balances and

intra-group transactions are eliminated as part of the consolidation process, except to the extent

that such intra-group balances and transactions are between Group enterprises within a single

segment. Inter-segment pricing is based on similar terms as those available to other external

parties.

Segment capital expenditure is the total cost incurred during the period to acquire segment assets

(both tangible and intangible) that are expected to be used for more than one period.

Unallocated items mainly comprise financial and corporate assets, interest-bearing loans,

borrowings, corporate and financing expenses.

3. Turnover

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal activities of the Group are (i) property

development and investment, (ii) trading and retailing, and (iii) healthcare and medical-related services.
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3. Turnover (Continued)

Turnover represents the sale value of goods supplied to customers (after deduction of any goods returns

and trade discounts), retailing business, provision for healthcare and medical-related services and gross

rental income from investment properties and dividend income for the year. The amount of each significant

category of revenue recognised in turnover during the year/period is analysed as follows:

9 months

Year ended ended

31/12/2006 31/12/2005

HK$’000 HK$’000

Continuing operations

Sale of leather products 72,532 63,949

Gross rentals from investment properties 341 —

72,873 63,949

Discontinued operations

Revenue from retailing business 9,300 8,075

Revenue from healthcare and medical-related services 567 1,565

9,867 9,640

82,740 73,589
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4. Other Revenue and Net Income

9 months

Year ended ended

31/12/2006 31/12/2005

HK$’000 HK$’000

Other revenue

Continuing operations

Interest income 1,180 130

Rentals receivable from operating leases other than

those relating to investment properties 587 327

Others 493 447

2,260 904

Discontinued operations

Interest income 18 14

Commission income 238 —

Rentals receivable from operating leases other than those

relating to investment properties 205 207

Office and management fee income — 311

Others 48 230

509 762
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4. Other Revenue and Net Income (Continued)

9 months

Year ended ended

31/12/2006 31/12/2005

HK$’000 HK$’000

Other net income

Continuing operations

Reversal of impairment loss for bad and doubtful debts 11 14

Net exchange gains 4 28

Net realized and unrealized (losses)/gains on trading securities (7) 25

Others 430 1

Reversal of provision for long service payments — 47

438 115

Discontinued operations

Reversal of impairment loss for bad and doubtful debts — 60

Net exchange gains/(losses) 66 (22)

66 38

5. Segment Information

(a) Business segments

In accordance with the Group’s internal financial reporting and management purposes, the Group

has determined that business segments are its primary reporting format and geographical segments

are its secondary reporting format, with each segment organised and managed separately.

Principal activities are as follows:

Property development and investments : Development of residential property and rental income

Trading and retailing : Trading and retailing of leather products

Healthcare and medical-related services : Provision for healthcare and medical-related services
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5. Segment Information (Continued)

(a) Business segments (Continued)

Segment information about these businesses is presented below.

Year ended 31 December 2006

Continuing operations Discontinued operations Consolidated

Property Healthcare

development and medical

and related

investment Trading Unallocated Elimination Sub-total Retailing business Elimination Sub-total

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

Revenue from external

customers 341 72,532 — — 72,873 9,300 567 — 9,867 82,740

Segment results 280 (661) (381) (11,339) (6,172) (17,511) (17,892)

Unallocated operating

income and expenses (13,819) — (13,819)

Loss from operations (14,200) (17,511) (31,711)

Finance costs (6,528) (16) (6,544)

Share of results

of associates 95,465 90 95,555

Profit/(loss) before

taxation 74,737 (17,437) 57,300

Taxation — — —

Profit/(loss) for the year 74,737 (17,437) 57,300

Segment assets 541,863 31,468 1,176,121 (490,279) 1,259,173 3,032 — — 3,032 1,262,205

Segment liabilities (544,101) (82,320) (621,589) 732,206 (515,804) (17,940) — 11,740 (6,200) (522,004)

Other segment

information

Capital expenditure 377,650 2 103 — 377,755 825 — — 825 378,580

Depreciation and

amortisation 9 1,267 358 — 1,634 370 682 — 1,052 2,686
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5. Segment Information (Continued)

(a) Business segments (Continued)

Period from 1 April 2005 to 31 December 2005

Continuing operations Discontinued operations Consolidated

Property Healthcare

development and medical

and related

investment Trading Unallocated Elimination Sub-total Retailing business Elimination Sub-total

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

Revenue from external

customers — 63,949 — — 63,949 8,075 1,565 — 9,640 73,589

Segment results (23) (3,344) (3,367) (5,259) (4,968) (10,227) (13,594)

Unallocated operating

income and expenses (6,059) 93 (5,966)

Loss from operations (9,426) (10,134) (19,560)

Finance costs (179) (12) (191)

Impairment loss

on goodwill — (30,160) (30,160)

Share of results

of associates 86,314 (174) 86,140

Profit/(loss) before

taxation 76,709 (40,480) 36,229

Taxation — (44) (44)

Profit/(loss) for

the period 76,709 (40,524) 36,185

Segment assets 73,923 37,338 1,251,960 (638,345) 724,876 11,984 57,311 (47,752) 21,543 746,419

Segment liabilities (73,898) (86,766) (596,833) 627,054 (130,443) (15,386) (59,706) 66,920 (8,172) (138,615)

Other segment

information

Capital expenditure 72,731 188 1,252 — 74,171 1,946 62 — 2,008 76,179

Depreciation and

amortisation — 753 105 — 858 434 781 — 1,215 2,073
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5. Segment Information (Continued)

(b) Geographical segments

The Group’s operations are located in Hong Kong, Macau and other regions in the People’s

Republic of China.

In presenting information on the basis of geographical segments, segment revenue is based on the

geographical location of customers. Segment assets and capital expenditure are based on the

geographical location of the assets.

Continuing operations

Other regions in the

Hong Kong Macau People’s Republic of China Others Total

9 months 9 months 9 months 9 months 9 months

Year ended ended Year ended ended Year ended ended Year ended ended Year ended ended

31/12/2006 31/12/2005 31/12/2006 31/12/2005 31/12/2006 31/12/2005 31/12/2006 31/12/2005 31/12/2006 31/12/2005

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

Revenue from external

customers 42,237 40,205 341 26 28,608 22,392 1,687 1,326 72,873 63,949

Segment assets 58,567 45,251 1,200,606 679,625 — — — — 1,259,173 724,876

Capital expenditure 105 1,440 377,650 72,731 — — — — 377,755 74,171

Discontinued operations

Other regions in the

Hong Kong Macau People’s Republic of China Others Total

9 months 9 months 9 months 9 months 9 months

Year ended ended Year ended ended Year ended ended Year ended ended Year ended ended

31/12/2006 31/12/2005 31/12/2006 31/12/2005 31/12/2006 31/12/2005 31/12/2006 31/12/2005 31/12/2006 31/12/2005

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

Revenue from external

customers 6,603 7,600 2,698 475 566 1,565 — — 9,867 9,640

Segment assets 3,032 10,119 — 1,865 — 9,559 — — 3,032 21,543

Capital expenditure 74 1,946 751 — — 62 — — 825 2,008
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5. Segment Information (Continued)

(b) Geographical segments (Continued)

Consolidated

9 months

Year ended ended

31/12/2006 31/12/2005

HK$’000 HK$’000

Revenue from external customers 82,740 73,589

Segment assets 1,262,205 746,419

Capital expenditure 378,580 76,179

6. Finance Costs

Continuing Operations Discontinued operations Consolidated

9 months 9 months 9 months

Year ended ended Year ended ended Year ended ended

31/12/2006 31/12/2005 31/12/2006 31/12/2005 31/12/2006 31/12/2005

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

Interest on bank loans,

overdrafts and other loans

wholly repayable

within five years 14,103 482 — 8 14,103 490

Effective interest expenses

of convertible notes 3,552 — — — 3,552 —

Finance charges on

obligations under

finance leases 8 10 16 4 24 14

Other borrowing costs 372 221 — — 372 221

Total borrowing costs 18,035 713 16 12 18,051 725

Less: borrowing costs

capitalized into*

— properties under

development (11,140) (534 ) — — (11,140) (534 )

— investment

properties (367) — — — (367) —

6,528 179 16 12 6,544 191

* The borrowing costs have been capitalised at a rate of 5.9% — 7.0% per annum (9 months ended 31

December 2005: 6.5% — 6.8%)
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7. Share of Results of Associates

Hotel Golden Dragon (Macao) Company Limited

Pursuant to the Provisional Sale and Purchase Agreement dated 3 January 2005 entered into between the

vendors and Pearl Oriental Macau Limited (the “Purchaser”, a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company),

upon the acquisition of a 40% interest in Hotel Golden Dragon (Macao) Company Limited (“Hotel

Golden Dragon”), the vendors have guaranteed and warranted to the Purchaser that the audited

consolidated net profit after taxation of Hotel Golden Dragon for each of the three years for the period

from 5 January 2005 to 4 January 2008, before the payment of bank loan interest, shall not be less than

HK$200 million.

8. Taxation

(a) Taxation in the consolidated income statement represents:

Continuing operations Discontinued operations Consolidated

9 months 9 months 9 months

Year ended ended Year ended ended Year ended ended

31/12/2006 31/12/2005 31/12/2006 31/12/2005 31/12/2006 31/12/2005

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

Hong Kong

profits tax — — — 44 — 44

For the year ended 31 December 2006, no provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made in

the financial statements as the Group has no estimated assessable profits for the year. For the

period ended 31 December 2005, Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 17.5%

on the estimated assessable profit arising in Hong Kong during that period. PRC subsidiaries are

subject to PRC Enterprise Income Tax at 30% (9 months ended 31 December 2005: 30%). Taxes

on profits assessable elsewhere have been calculated at the applicable rates of prevailing in the

jurisdiction on which the Group operates, based on existing legislation, interpretations and practice

in respect thereof during the year/period.
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8. Taxation (Continued)

(b) Reconciliation between taxation expenses and accounting profit/(loss) at applicable rates:

Continuing Operations Discontinued operations Consolidated

9 months 9 months 9 months

Year ended ended Year ended ended Year ended ended

31/12/2006 31/12/2005 31/12/2006 31/12/2005 31/12/2006 31/12/2005

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

Profit/(loss) before

taxation 74,737 76,709 (17,437) (40,480) 57,300 36,229

Notional tax on

profit/(loss) before

taxation

calculated at the

rate of 17.5%

(9 months ended

31 December

2005: 17.5%) 13,080 13,424 (3,051) (7,084) 10,029 6,340

Tax effect of

non-deductible

expenses 2,475 928 2,164 5,268 4,639 6,196

Tax effect of

non-taxable

income (16,895) (14,748) (351) (62) (17,246) (14,810)

Tax effect of

unused tax losses

not recognised 1,292 293 1,238 1,831 2,530 2,124

Effect of different

tax rates of the

companies of

the Group 48 60 — — 48 60

Others — 43 — 91 — 134

Actual tax expense — — — 44 — 44
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9. Discontinued Operations

(a) Disposal of the retailing business

On 27 June 2006, Star Palace Enterprises Limited (“Star Palace”), 70% owned subsidiary of the

Company, entered into an agreement with Star (1) Limited (“Star (1)”), a company wholly owned

by Mr. Law Kar Po and Ms. Law Wing Yee, Wendy, both of whom are directors of the Company,

pursuant to which Star Palace transferred its assets, rights and contracts related to the shoes and

bags retail business to Star (1) for a consideration of HK$950,000. Upon completion of the

disposals, Star Palace ceases to conduct the shoes and bags retail business. Further details are set

out in the announcement dated 29 June 2006 and the circular dated 13 July 2006 issued by the

Company.

(b) Disposal of the healthcare and medical related business

On 6 October 2006, Canasta Overseas Group Limited (“Canasta”), a wholly owned subsidiary of

the Company, entered into an agreement with an independent third party, pursuant to which

Canasta disposed of its entire interest in China Healthcare Limited, together with benefits in the

shareholders’ loans and profit guarantee for an aggregate consideration of HK$2,000,000. Further

details are set out in the announcement of the Company dated 9 October 2006 issued by the

Company.

The combined results and cash flows of the discontinued operations (i.e. the retailing and healthcare

and medical related business) included in the consolidated income statement and the consolidated

cash flow statement are set out below.
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9. Discontinued Operations (Continued)

(c) An analysis of the result and cash flows of the discontinued operations is as follows:

Consolidated

9 months

Year ended ended

31/12/2006 31/12/2005

HK$’000 HK$’000

Turnover 9,867 9,640

Other revenue 509 762

Other net income 66 38

Impairment loss on goodwill — (30,160)

Expenses (27,969) (20,586)

Loss on remeasurement to fair value less costs to sell — —

Loss for the year/period from operation (17,527) (40,306)

Share of results of associates 90 (174)

Loss before taxation (17,437) (40,480)

Taxation — (44)

Loss for the year/period from discontinued operations (17,437) (40,524)

Cash flows from discontinued operations

Net cash used in operating activities (1,021) (9,483)

Net cash generated from/(used in) financing activities 2,824 (257)

Net cash (used in)/generated from investing activities (3,208) 10,898

Net cash (outflow)/inflow (1,405) 1,158
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10. Profit for the Year/Period

Profit for the year/period is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

Continuing operations Discontinued operations Consolidated

9 months 9 months 9 months

Year ended ended Year ended ended Year ended ended

31/12/2006 31/12/2005 31/12/2006 31/12/2005 31/12/2006 31/12/2005

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

Charging:

Staff costs (including

directors’ remuneration)

— salaries, wages and

other benefits 17,826 10,898 2,456 3,864 20,282 14,762

— retirement benefits

scheme contributions

(Note 13) 282 123 93 146 375 269

Total staff costs 18,108 11,021 2,549 4,010 20,657 15,031

Auditors’ remuneration

— audit services for

current year/period 1,647 1,557 21 17 1,668 1,574

— (over)/under-provision

in prior years (200) 260 — — (200) 260

1,447 1,817 21 17 1,468 1,834

— other services 85 15 — — 85 15

1,532 1,832 21 17 1,553 1,849

Direct costs 51,290 49,236 5,278 4,060 56,568 53,296

Depreciation 1,634 858 1,052 1,215 2,686 2,073

Loss on disposal

of inventories — — 1,744 — 1,744 —

Operating lease charges:

Premises 3,030 1,817 4,947 4,604 7,977 6,421

Loss on disposal of property,

plant and equipment 29 28 2,272 — 2,301 28

Impairment loss on goodwill — — — 30,160 — 30,160

Impairment loss for bad and

doubtful debts 536 505 46 — 582 505

Crediting:

Rental receivable from

investment properties

less direct outgoings (270) — — — (270) —
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11. Directors’ Remuneration

Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to section 161 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance is as

follows:

Salaries, Retirement

allowances benefits Year ended

Directors’ and benefits scheme 31/12/2006

fees in kind contributions Total

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

Executive directors

Chiang Pedro — — — —

Law Kar Po — — — —

Lee Sam Yuen, John — 1,264 8 1,272

Law Wing Yee, Wendy — 270 6 276

Lee Siu Yuk, Eliza — 960 12 972

Wu Ka I, Miguel 790 — — 790

Hoi Man Pak — — — —

Ung Choi Kun — — — —

Non-executive directors

Alves Leonel Alberto 200 — — 200

Chui Sai Cheong 117 — — 117

Independent non-executive directors

Kwok Hong Yee, Jesse 200 — — 200

Wong King Lam, Joseph 200 — — 200

Lau Wai Ming 200 — — 200

1,707 2,494 26 4,227
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11. Directors’ Remuneration (Continued)

Salaries, Retirement 9 months

allowances benefits ended

Directors’ and benefits scheme 31/12/2005

fees in kind contributions Total

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

Executive directors

Law Kar Po — — — —

Lee Sam Yuen, John 2,231 — 37 2,268

Law Wing Yee, Wendy — 405 9 414

Lee Siu Yuk, Eliza — 530 8 538

Chiang Pedro — — — —

Hoi Man Pak — — — —

Ung Choi Kun — — — —

Wu Ka I, Miguel 500 — — 500

Wong Yuk Kwan — — — —

Non-executive directors

Chui Sai Cheong 83 — — 83

Wong Wing Hon, Alfonso — — — —

Leonel Alberto Alves 83 — — 83

Independent non-executive directors

Kwok Hong Yee, Jesse 83 — — 83

Lau Wai Ming 83 — — 83

Wong King Lam, Joseph 83 — — 83

Ha Kee Choy, Eugene — — — —

Ng Kai Man, Luke — — — —

Chan Nim Leung, Leon — — — —

3,146 935 54 4,135

During the year ended 31 December 2006, no emoluments were paid by the Group to the directors as a

discretionary bonus or any inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of

office. None of the directors has waived or agreed to waive any remuneration for the current or prior

years.
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11. Directors’ Remuneration (Continued)

Included in the directors’ remuneration were fees of HK$600,000 (9 months ended 31 December 2005:

HK$250,000) and HK$317,000 (9 months ended 31 December 2005: HK$166,000) paid to the independent

non-executive directors and the non-executive directors respectively during the year/period.

12. Individuals with Highest Emoluments

The five individuals with the highest emoluments included two (9 months ended 31 December 2005:

three) directors whose emoluments are included in the disclosure in note 11. The aggregate of the

emoluments of the remaining three (9 months ended 31 December 2005: two) individuals are as follows:

9 months

Year ended ended

31/12/2006 31/12/2005

HK$’000 HK$’000

Salaries and other emoluments 4,229 2,250

Retirement benefits scheme contributions 35 —

4,264 2,250

The emoluments of the three (9 months ended 31 December 2005: two) individuals with the highest

emoluments are within the following bands:

9 months

Year ended ended

31/12/2006 31/12/2005

Number of Number of

individuals individuals

HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 3 2

During the year ended 31 December 2006 and the period ended 31 December 2005, there were no

emoluments paid to the directors or individuals above as a discretionary bonus or an inducement to join

or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office.
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13. Retirement Benefits Scheme Contributions

Continuing operations Discontinued operations Consolidated

9 months 9 months 9 months

Year ended ended Year ended ended Year ended ended

31/12/2006 31/12/2005 31/12/2006 31/12/2005 31/12/2006 31/12/2005

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

Contributions:

Hong Kong subsidiaries

(Note a) 282 101 61 64 343 165

Overseas subsidiaries

(Note b) — 22 32 82 32 104

282 123 93 146 375 269

Note:

(a) The Group operates a pension scheme under the rules and regulations of Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes

Ordinance (“MPF Scheme”). The MPF Scheme is a defined contribution retirement scheme. The assets of the

MPF Scheme are held separately in an independently managed fund. The Group has followed the minimum

statutory contribution requirement of 5% of eligible employees’ relevant aggregate income or HK$12,000 per

annum, whichever is lower. Contributions to the MPF Scheme vest immediately and contributions are charged

to the income statement as incurred.

(b) The employees of overseas subsidiaries are members of the central pension schemes operated by the local

governments authorities in which they operate. These subsidiaries are required to contribute a certain percentage

of their payroll to the central pension schemes to fund the benefits. The only obligation of the Group with

respect to the central pension schemes is the payment of the required contributions under the central pension

schemes.

14. Profit Attributable to Shareholders of the Company

The consolidated profit attributable to equity holders of the Company includes a loss of HK$63,054,000

(9 months ended 31 December 2005: loss of HK$3,674,000) which has been dealt with in the financial

statements of the Company.
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15. Earnings per Share

(a) From continuing and discontinued operations

(i) Basic earnings per share

The calculation of basic earnings per share is as follows:

9 months

Year ended ended

31/12/2006 31/12/2005

HK$’000 HK$’000

Profit attributable to equity holders of the Company 57,246 38,399

Number of shares

Weighted average number of ordinary shares

Issued ordinary share at 1 January/1 April 2,430,822,840 1,970,622,840

Effect of issue of shares for the placing 302,465,753 36,577,540

Effect of listed warrants exercised/issued

of shares at premium 1,118 151,947,594

Weighted average number of ordinary shares

at 31 December 2,733,289,711 2,159,147,974

(ii) Diluted earnings per share

The diluted earnings per share for the year ended 31 December 2006 is calculated based

on the profit attributable to the equity holders of the Company of HK$60,798,000 and the

weighted average number of shares of 3,151,493,631, calculated as follows:

Profit attributable to equity holders of the Company (diluted)

Year ended

31/12/2006

HK$’000

Profit attributable to equity holders of the Company 57,246

After tax effect of effective interest on liability component

of convertible notes 3,552

Profit attributable to equity holders of the Company 60,798
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15. Earnings per Share (Continued)

(a) From continuing and discontinued operations (Continued)

(ii) Diluted earnings per share (Continued)

Weighted average number of ordinary shares (diluted)

Year ended

31/12/2006

Number of shares

Weighted average number of ordinary shares at 31 December 2006 2,733,289,711

Effect of conversion of convertible notes into

the Company’s new ordinary shares 418,203,920

Weighted average number of ordinary shares (diluted)

at 31 December 2006 3,151,493,631

The computation of diluted earnings per share for the year ended 31 December 2006 does

not assume the exercise of warrants of the Company because the effect of exercise of

outstanding warrants would be anti-dilutive.

Diluted earnings per share for the period from 1 April 2005 to 31 December 2005 was not

presented as the exercise of the outstanding warrants of the Company would be anti-

dilutive.
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15. Earnings per Share (Continued)

(b) From continuing operations

(i) Basic earning per share

The calculation of basic earnings per share is as follows:

9 months

Year ended ended

31/12/2006 31/12/2005

HK$’000 HK$’000

Profit attributable to equity holders of the Company 74,683 76,709

Number of shares

Weighted average number of ordinary shares

(same as weighted average number of ordinary

shares for basic earnings per share for continuing

and discontinued operations) 2,733,289,711 2,159,147,974
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15. Earnings per Share (Continued)

(b) From continuing operations (Continued)

(ii) Diluted earnings per share

The diluted earnings per share for the year ended 31 December 2006 is calculated based

on the profit attributable to the equity holders of the Company of HK$78,235,000 and

weighted average number of ordinary shares of 3,151,493,631, calculated as follows:

Profit attributable to equity holders of the Company (diluted)

Year ended

31/12/2006

HK$’000

Profit attributable to equity holders of the Company 74,683

After tax effect of effective interest on liability component

of convertible notes 3,552

Profit attributable to equity holders of the Company 78,235

Number of shares

Weighted average number of ordinary shares

(same as weighted average number of ordinary shares for diluted

earnings per share for continuing and discontinued operations) 3,151,493,631

The computation of diluted earnings per share for the year ended 31 December 2006 does

not assume the exercise of warrants of the Company because the effect of exercise of

outstanding warrants would be anti-dilutive.

Diluted earnings per share for the period from 1 April 2005 to ended 31 December 2005

was not presented as the exercise of the outstanding warrants of the Company would be

anti-dilutive.
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16. Investment Property

The Group

2006 2005

HK$’000 HK$’000

Valuation

At beginning of the year/period — —

Addition during the year/period 61,114 —

At end of the year/period 61,114 —

(a) At 31 December 2006, the investment property was pledged as securities for bank loans as

detailed in note 28.

(b) The fair value of the Group’ s investment property at 31 December 2006 has been arrived at on

the basis of a valuation carried out on that date by BMI Appraisals Limited, independent qualified

professional valuers not connected with the Group. BMI Appraisals Limited which holds recognised

and relevant professional qualifications and has recent experiences in the location and category

of investment property being valued. The valuation, which conforms to international valuation

standards, was arrived at by reference to the market evidence of transaction prices for similar

properties.

(c) Valuation of property shown above comprises:

2006 2005

HK$’000 HK$’000

Properties in Macau held under medium-term lease 61,114 —
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17. Property, Plant and Equipment

The Group

Land Furniture

and and Office Plant and Motor Leasehold

buildings fixtures equipment machinery vehicles improvements Total

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

At Cost

At 1 April 2005 12,597 994 4,109 13,337 3,201 5,458 39,696

Additions 144 588 1,131 — 408 1,177 3,448

Disposals — — (137 ) — (270 ) — (407 )

At 31 December 2005 and

1 January 2006 12,741 1,582 5,103 13,337 3,339 6,635 42,737

Additions — 128 168 — — 634 930

Disposals — (465 ) (748 ) — — (2,038 ) (3,251 )

Reclassified as held for

disposal on sale

of subsidiaries — (2 ) (1,594 ) (4,330 ) — (2,339 ) (8,265 )

At 31 December 2006 12,741 1,243 2,929 9,007 3,339 2,892 32,151

Accumulated depreciation

and impairment

At 1 April 2005 9,083 915 2,464 8,549 1,428 3,028 25,467

Charge for the period 270 71 502 172 401 657 2,073

Eliminated on disposal — — (136 ) — (243 ) — (379 )

Exchange alignment (105 ) (1 ) — (41 ) — — (147 )

At 31 December 2005 and

1 January 2006 9,248 985 2,830 8,680 1,586 3,685 27,014

Charge for the year 682 105 523 191 556 629 2,686

Eliminated on disposal — (14 ) (67 ) — — (171 ) (252 )

Eliminated on disposal on

sale of subsidiaries — — (751 ) (948 ) — (1,464 ) (3,163 )

Exchange alignment (77 ) — — (13 ) — — (90 )

At 31 December 2006 9,853 1,076 2,535 7,910 2,142 2,679 26,195

Net book value

At 31 December 2006 2,888 167 394 1,097 1,197 213 5,956

At 31 December 2005 3,493 597 2,273 4,657 1,753 2,950 15,723
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17. Property, Plant and Equipment (Continued)

(a) The analysis of net book value of properties held by the Group is as follows:

The Group

2006 2005

HK$’000 HK$’000

Outside Hong Kong held under medium-term leases 2,888 3,493

(b) At the balance sheet date, the net book value of the Group’s property, plant and equipment held

under operating leases was nil (2005: HK$6,953,000).

(c) At the balance sheet date, the net book value of the Group’s property, plant and equipment held

under finance leases was HK$292,000 (2005: HK$610,000).

18. Properties under Development

The Group

2006 2005

HK$’000 HK$’000

Valuation

At beginning of the year/period 72,731 —

Cost of acquisition of land during the year/period 300,000 69,400

Other incidental expenses capitalized during the year/period 16,536 3,331

At end of the year/period 389,267 72,731

(a) At 31 December 2006, the properties under development were pledged as securities for bank

loans as detailed in note 28.

(b) Included in the cost of properties under development is net interest capitalized totaling

HK$11,453,000 (2005: HK$313,000).
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18. Properties under Development (Continued)

(c) The analysis of carrying value of land held for properties under development shown above

comprises:

2006 2005

HK$’000 HK$’000

Properties in Macau held under

— long lease 69,400 69,400

— medium-term lease 300,000 —

At end of the year/period 369,400 69,400

19. Investments in Subsidiaries

The Company

2006 2005

HK$’000 HK$’000

Unlisted shares, at cost 2,101 2,100

Less: Impairment loss (2,100) —

1 2,100

(a) As detailed in note 9(a) to the financial statements, upon disposal of its retail business, Star Palace

ceased to conduct the shoes and bags retail business and remained dormant. In 2006, the

management of the Group assessed the recoverable amounts of the investments in subsidiaries.

Based on this assessment, the carrying amount of the investments in subsidiaries was written

down by HK$2,100,000. The management determined the recoverable amount on the basis of past

performance, management’s expectations for the market development and certain key assumptions.

(b) The following list contains only the particulars of subsidiaries which principally affected the

results, assets or liabilities of the Group. The class of shares held is ordinary unless otherwise

stated.
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19. Investments in Subsidiaries (Continued)

Place of

incorporation/ Proportion of

registration Particulars of issued ownership interest

Name of company and operation and paid up capital Directly Indirectly Principal activities

Star Palace Enterprises Limited Hong Kong 3,000,000 shares 70% — Investment holding

of HK$1 each

MOCCA Group Limited Hong Kong 1 share of HK$1 each — 100% Investment holding

Pearl Oriental Macau Limited Hong Kong 1 share of HK$1 each 100% — Investment holding

Canasta Overseas Group Limited British Virgin 1 share of US$1 each 100% — Investment holding

Islands (“BVI”)

Prospect Sync Holdings Limited BVI 1 share of US$1 each 100% — Investment holding

Dah Hwa Leather & Trading Hong Kong 5,000 shares of — 100% Investment holding

Co., Limited # HK$100 each and trading of

finished leather

Guangdong Faith Investment Hong Kong 2,280,000 shares of — 100% Investment holding

Limited # HK$1 each

Inter Leather Limited # Hong Kong 100,000 shares of — 100% Inactive

HK$1 each

Pathway International Limited # BVI 50 shares of US$1 each 50% — Investment holding

Da Ya Leather Company Limited # PRC Registered capital — 100% Processing of

US$820,000 finished leather

Zhong Da Handbag PRC Registered capital — 100% Manufacture of

Company Limited # HK$9,260,000 leatherware

accessories

Honesty Services Limited Hong Kong 1 share of HK$1 each 100% — Holding of motor

vehicle
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19. Investments in Subsidiaries (Continued)

Place of

incorporation/ Proportion of

registration Particulars of issued ownership interest

Name of company and operation and paid up capital Directly Indirectly Principal activities

Honesty Treasure Limited Hong Kong 2 shares of HK$1 each 50% 50% Provision of

management

service

Parsinno International Limited Hong Kong 1 share of HK$1 each 100% — Investment holding

Son Pou Real Estate Macau Registered capital — 51% Property

Company Limited MOP100,000 development

Honesty Treasure Management Macau Registered capital 4% 96% Management services

Limited MOP25,000

Fast Action Developments Limited BVI 1 share of US$1 each 100% — Investment holding

Continental Ocean Investment Macau Registered capital — 55% Property

and Development Company MOP200,000 development

Limited

Super Times Far East Limited BVI 1 share of US$1 each 100% — Investment holding

# Companies not audited by CCIF CPA Limited.

20. Interests in Associates

The Group

2006 2005

HK$’000 HK$’000

Share of net assets 657,906 606,349
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20. Interests in Associates (Continued)

The following list contains only the particulars of associates, all of which are unlisted corporate entities,

which principally affected the results or assets of the Group:

Place of Proportion of

incorporation/ ownership interest

Form of registration Particulars Group’s

business and of issued and effective Held by Held by Principal

Name of company structure operation paid up capital interest subsidiary associate activities

Hotel Golden Incorporated Macau Registered capital 40% 40% — Operation

Dragon (Macao) MOP1,000,000 of hotel

Company Limited #

Sunny Tourist & Incorporated Macau Registered capital 24% — 60% Provision for

Entertainment MOP100,000 tourism

Company Limited # and

related

service

# Companies not audited by CCIF CPA Limited

The key consolidated financial information of the associates is as follows:

2006 2005

HK$’000 HK$’000

Non-current assets 585,802 589,036

Current assets 262,413 195,520

Non-current liabilities (364,953) (397,978)

Current liabilities (93,012) (149,292)

Equity 390,250 237,286
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20. Interests in Associates (Continued)

9 months

Year ended ended

31/12/2006 31/12/2005

HK$’000 HK$’000

Revenues 589,405 468,792

Profit* 238,664 185,587

* Included in the profit of the associates for the year ended 31 December 2006 was increase in fair value of

hotel property to approximately HK$25 million (9 months ended 31 December 2005: HK$49 million).

21. Goodwill

The Group

2006 2005

HK$’000 HK$’000

At beginning of the year/period — 30,160

Impairment loss — (30,160)

At end of the year/period — —

Goodwill is allocated to the Group’s cash generating unit of the healthcare and medical related business.

During the period ended 31 December 2005, the management of the Group assessed the recoverable

amount of the goodwill. Based on this assessment, the carrying amount of the goodwill was written

down by HK$30,160,000. The recoverable amount has been determined on the basis of value in use

calculations. Their recoverable amount is based on certain key assumptions. All value in use calculations

use cash flow projections based on the financial budgets. Cash flow projections during the budget period

for the goodwill are based on the expected gross margins during the budget period. Budgeted gross

margins have been determined based on past performance and management’s expectations for the market

development.

22. Trading Securities

The Group

2006 2005

HK$’000 HK$’000

Listed equity securities in Hong Kong, at market value 43 66
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23. Inventories

The Group

2006 2005

HK$’000 HK$’000

Raw materials 266 528

Work in progress 132 226

Finished goods and merchandise for sale 7,350 11,581

7,748 12,335

At 31 December 2006, the amount of inventories, included in above, carried at net realisable value is

HK$7,042,000 (2005: HK$8,329,000).

24. Properties Held for Sale

At 31 December 2006, none of properties held for sale were carried at net realisable value.

25. Trade and other Receivables

The Group The Company

2006 2005 2006 2005

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

Amounts due from subsidiaries

(note a) — — 634,159 575,914

Trade debtors (note b) 6,999 7,828 — —

Prepayments, deposits and

other receivables 12,015 11,870 485 622

19,014 19,698 634,644 576,536
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25. Trade and other Receivables (Continued)

(a) An analysis of the amounts due from subsidiaries is listed below:

The Company

2006 2005

HK$’000 HK$’000

Due from subsidiaries 743,779 693,642

Less: Impairment (109,620) (117,728)

634,159 575,914

The amounts are unsecured and have no fixed terms of repayment. Out of the total balance, a sum

of HK$3,173,000 (2005: Nil) bears interest at 8% per annum.

The Group discontinued the healthcare and medical-related business and retailing business, and

concluded that the recoverability of the amounts due from subsidiaries in these businesses are

remote. Therefore, these amounts are fully impaired in the year.

In 2006, the management of the Group assessed the recoverable amounts of the amount due from

subsidiaries. Based on this assessment, the impairment loss was reversed by HK$8,108,000. The

recoverable amounts are based on the evaluation of collectability and aging analysis of accounts

and on management’s judgment.

(b) Included in trade receivables are trade debtors (net of impairment losses for bad and doubtful

debts of HK$79,449,000 (2005: HK$78,913,000)) with the following ageing analysis as of the

balance sheet date:

The Group

2006 2005

HK$’000 HK$’000

Current or due within 30 days 4,972 3,209

Within 31 to 60 days 543 2,481

Within 61 to 90 days 426 864

Due over 90 days 1,058 1,274

6,999 7,828
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25. Trade and other Receivables (Continued)

(b) (Continued)

The general credit terms of the Group range from 30 to 60 days. The Group may, on a case by

case basis and after evaluation of the business relationship and creditworthiness extend the credit

period upon customers’ request.

(c) All of the trade and other receivables (including amounts due from subsidiaries), apart from utility

deposits, are expected to be recovered within one year.

26. Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Group The Company

2006 2005 2006 2005

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

Cash and cash equivalents

in the balance sheet 35,495 19,517 25,584 6,311

Less: pledged deposits for issuance

of guarantee letter for

constructions (100) —

Cash and cash equivalents in the

consolidated cash flow statement 35,395 19,517



90

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2006

H
o

n
e

st
y 

Tr
e

a
su

re
 I

n
te

rn
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
H

o
ld

in
g

s 
Lt

d

27. Trade and other Payables

The Group The Company

2006 2005 2006 2005

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

Bills payable — 353 — —

Trade creditors (note a) 3,484 2,287 — —

Accruals and other payables 19,059 24,565 3,129 2,907

Amount due to minority

interests (note b) 129,429 52,997 — —

Amounts due to related companies

(note c) — 913 — —

Amount due to an ex-director

(note d) 817 — — —

Other loans (note e) 1,496 16,461 1,496 16,461

154,285 97,576 4,625 19,368

(a) Included in trade and other payables are trade creditors with the following ageing analysis as of

the balance sheet date:

The Group

2006 2005

HK$’000 HK$’000

Due within 30 days or on demand 2,832 1,164

Due within 31 to 60 days 203 638

Due within 61 to 90 days 2 200

Due over 90 days 447 285

3,484 2,287
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27. Trade and other Payables (Continued)

(b) The amounts due to minority interests were unsecured, non-interest bearing and have no fixed

terms of repayment. Out of the total balance, a sum of HK$69,864,000 (2005: HK$2,400,000)

were due to the following parties:

The Group

2006 2005

HK$’000 HK$’000

Mr. Pedro Chiang (“Mr. Chiang”) 29,984 —

Mr. Law Kar Po (“Mr. Law”) 19,940 1,200

Mr. Hoi Man Pak (“Mr. Hoi”) 11,244 —

Mr. Wu Ka I, Miguel (“Mr. Wu”) 3,748 —

Ms. Law Wing Yee, Wendy (“Ms. Law”) 1,200 1,200

Ms. Leong Lai Heng (“Ms. Leong”) 3,748 —

69,864 2,400

At 31 December 2006, Mr. Chiang, Mr. Law, Mr. Hoi, Mr. Wu and Ms. Law were directors of the

Company. Ms. Leong is the spouse of Mr. Chiang.

(c) The amounts were unsecured, non-interest bearing and repayable on demand.

(d) At 31 December 2006, the amount due to Mr. Lee Sam Yuen, John, who was a director of the

Company until 1 May 2006, was unsecured, non-interest bearing and has no fixed terms of

repayment.

(e) At 31 December 2006, the other loans of the Group and the Company amounting to HK$1,496,000

(2005: HK$1,461,000) due to independent third parties were unsecured, interest bearing at 2.5%

per annum and repayable on demand.

At 31 December 2005, the other loans of the Group and the Company included a sum of

HK15,000,000 due to independent third parties, which were unsecured, interest bearing at 7%

per annum. The amount was repaid in full during the year ended 31 December 2006.
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28. Bank Loans

At 31 December 2006, bank loans of the Group amounting to HK$187,400,000 (2005: HK$37,200,000)

were secured by the properties under development of the Group with carrying amount at the balance

sheet date of HK$389,267,000 (2005: HK$72,731,000). In addition of the total amount, a sum of

HK$37,400,000 (2005: HK$37,200,000) was guaranteed by Mr. Pedro Chiang (“Mr. Chiang”), Mr. Wu Ka

I, Miguel (“Mr. Wu”), Mr. Ung Kin Kuok (“Mr. Ung”) and Ms. Hoi Wa Fan (“Ms. Hoi”), to the extent of

HK$11,270,000, HK$11,270,000, HK$8,400,000 and HK$13,260,000 respectively. At 31 December 2006,

Mr. Chiang and Mr. Wu are directors of the Company. Mr. Ung and Ms. Hoi have beneficial interest in a

subsidiary of the Company.

At 31 December 2006, bank loans of the Group amounting to HK$97,860,000 (2005: Nil) were secured

by (i) the properties held for sale of the Group with carrying amount of HK$85,662,000 (2005: Nil) at the

balance sheet date, (ii) the investment properties of the Group with carrying amount of HK$61,114,000

(2005: Nil) at the balance sheet date, and (iii) corporate guarantee to the extent of HK$97,860,000 put

up by the Company.

At 31 December 2006, bank loans of the Group amounting to HK$3,985,000 (2005: HK$2,588,000)

were secured by (i) the land and buildings of the Group with carrying amount of HK$2,888,000 (2005:

HK$3,493,000) at the balance sheet date, (ii) certain properties held by a related company of a subsidiary

of the Company, and (iii) personal guarantee to the extent of HK$100 million (2005: HK$100 million)

put up by a director of a subsidiary of the Company.

At 31 December 2006 and 2005, all bank loans were repayable within one year.
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29. Obligations under Finance Leases

At 31 December 2006, the Group had obligations under finance lease payable as follows:

The Group

Present value of

Total minimum lease payments minimum lease payments

2006 2005 2006 2005

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

Within one year 14 272 13 253

After one year but within two years — 14 — 13

After two years but within five years — 55 — 51

14 341 13 317

Total future finance charges (1) (24)

Present value of lease obligations 13 317

Current portion 13 253

Non-current portion — 64

13 317

30. Convertible Notes

The Group and the Company

On 28 April 2006, the Company issued HK$91,094,000 convertible notes redeemable within 5 years

from the date of issue. The notes bear interest at 2.5% per annum and are unsecured. The holders of the

notes have the right at any time after the issue of the notes to convert any outstanding amount of the

notes into the shares of the Company at the conversion price of HK$0.148 per share (subject to adjustment)

until 27 April 2011. Further details are set out in the Company’s circular dated 22 March 2006.

The convertible loan notes contain two components, liability and equity elements. The equity element is

presented in equity heading “convertible loan notes — equity reserves”. The effective interest rate of the

liability component is 7.094%.
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30. Convertible Notes (Continued)

The Group and the Company (Continued)

The movement of the liability component of the convertible loan notes for the year is set out below:

2006

HK$’000

Principal amount 91,094

Equity component (17,119)

Liability component at date of issue 73,975

Interest charged 3,552

Interest paid —

Liability component at 31 December 2006 77,527

31. Provision for Long Service Payments

The Group

2006 2005

HK$’000 HK$’000

At the beginning of the year/period 934 1,928

Utilization during the year/period — (947)

Reversal of provision — (47)

At the end of the year/period 934 934
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32. Share Capital

The Group and the Company

2006 2005

Number Number

of shares HK$’000 of shares HK$’000

Authorised:

Ordinary shares of HK$0.05 each 5,000,000,000 250,000 5,000,000,000 250,000

Number

of shares Amount

Note HK$’000

Issued and fully paid:

Ordinary shares of HK$0.05 each

At 1 April 2005 1,970,622,840 98,531

Issue of shares by a placement (a) 60,000,000 3,000

Issue of new shares for the shortfall in relation

to the acquisition of an associate (b) 400,200,000 20,010

At 31 December 2005 and 1 January 2006 2,430,822,840 121,541

Issue of shares by a placing (c) 400,000,000 20,000

Shares issued upon exercise of listed warrants (d) 3,000 —

At 31 December 2006 2,830,825,840 141,541

Note:

(a) Pursuant to the written resolution dated 4 July 2005, the Company entered into a placing agreement to issue

of 60,000,000 new shares (the “Placing Shares”) of HK$0.05 each in the capital of the Company at the price

of HK$0.35 per Placing Share and 225,000,000 warrants (“2007 Warrant”), carrying the rights to subscribe for

new Shares at a subscription price of HK$0.35 per share subject to adjustment, until 20 July 2007, at the

price of HK$0.022 per warrant to the placing agent. The new shares were issued to rank pari passu in all

respects with the then existing shares.

There is no exercise of warrants since their issue.
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32. Share Capital (Continued)

Note: (Continued)

(b) Reference was made to the circular of the Company dated 25 August 2005. It was noted that the Company

had entered into the supplemental agreement dated 14 July 2005 made between the Company, the purchaser,

a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, and the vendors with regards to the settlement of the shortfall of

HK$140,070,000 by the issue of 400,200,000 shares at an agreed price of HK$0.35 per share.

Pursuant to the ordinary resolution of the extraordinary general meeting dated 12 September 2005, the

Company issued of 400,200,000 new shares according to the supplemental agreement. The new shares were

issued to rank pari passu in all respects with the then existing shares.

(c) Reference was made to the announcement of the Company dated 28 February 2006, the increase in issued

share capital was due to the placing of 400,000,000 new shares (the “Placing shares”) of HK$0.05 each in the

capital of the Company at HK$0.148 per placing share. The placing was completed on 31 March 2006. The

new shares were issued to rank pari passu in all respects with the then existing shares.

(d) On 24 April 2006, the board proposed a conditional bonus warrant issue to the shareholders on the basis of

one warrant for every ten shares of the Company. The initial subscription price was determined at HK$0.26

per share, subject to adjustment, and the bonus warrants (“2009 Warrant”) are exercisable at any time during

the period from 7 June 2006 to 6 June 2009 (if that day is not a business day, the business day immediately

preceding that day) (both days inclusive). The new shares were issued to rank pari passu in all respects with

the then existing shares.

In August 2006, new shares were issued upon the conversion of “2009 Warrant” into 3,000 new shares of

HK$0.05 each at a price of HK$0.26 per share.

(e) Warrants

Movements in Warrants:

Number of Warrants

Exercised

At Issued during At 31/12/2005 Issued during during

Date of issue 1/4/2005 the period and 1/1/2006 the year the year At 31/12/2006

2007 Warrant 21/7/2005 — 225,000,000 225,000,000 — — 225,000,000

2009 Warrant 7/6/2006 — — — 283,082,284 (3,000) 283,079,284

Terms of unexpired and unexercised Warrants at the balance sheet date:

Date of issue Exercisable period Number of Warrants

2006 2005

2007 Warrant 21/7/2005 21/7/2005 — 20/7/2007 225,000,000 225,000,000

2009 Warrant 7/6/2006 7/6/2006 — 6/6/2009 283,079,284 —
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33. Reserves

(a) The Group

Attributable to equity holders of the Company
Convertible (Accumulated

Capital notes losses)/
Share redemption equity Warrant Exchange Retained Minority

premium reserve reserve reserve reserve earnings Total interests Total
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

At 1 April 2005 660,795 69 — — (220 ) (214,962 ) 445,682 2,563 448,245
Issue of shares at a premium

through placing 17,410 — — — — — 17,410 — 17,410
Capitalisation of share premium (20,010 ) — — — — — (20,010 ) — (20,010 )
Acquisition of a subsidiary — — — — — — — 48 48
Expenses on capitalization

of premium (320 ) — — — — — (320 ) — (320 )
Issue of unlisted warrants — — — 4,950 — — 4,950 — 4,950
Exchange differences on

translation of financial
statements of foreign entities — — — — (245 ) — (245 ) — (245 )

Profit for the period — — — — — 38,399 38,399 (2,214 ) 36,185
Share premium set-off against

accumulated losses (218,856 ) — — — — 218,856 — — —

At 31 December 2005 and
1 January 2006 439,019 69 — 4,950 (465 ) 42,293 485,866 397 486,263

Issue of shares at a premium
through placing 39,200 — — — — — 39,200 — 39,200

Acquisition of subsidiaries — — — — — — — (178 ) (178 )
Issue of convertible notes — — 17,119 — — — 17,119 — 17,119
Share issue expenses (767 ) — — — — — (767 ) — (767 )
Exchange differences on

translation of financial
statements of foreign entities — — — — (277 ) — (277 ) — (277 )

Profit for the year — — — — — 57,246 57,246 54 57,300
Share premium set-off against

accumulated losses (63,054 ) — — — — 63,054 — — —

At 31 December 2006 414,398 69 17,119 4,950 (742 ) 162,593 598,387 273 598,660

Reserves retained by:

At 31 December 2006
— Company and subsidiaries 414,398 69 17,119 4,950 (742 ) (24,574 ) 411,220 273 411,493
— Associates — — — — — 187,167 187,167 — 187,167

414,398 69 17,119 4,950 (742 ) 162,593 598,387 273 598,660

At 31 December 2005
— Company and subsidiaries 439,019 69 — 4,950 (465 ) (49,173 ) 394,400 397 394,797
— Associates — — — — — 91,466 91,466 — 91,466

439,019 69 — 4,950 (465 ) 42,293 485,866 397 486,263
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33. Reserves (Continued)

(b) The Company

Capital Convertible

Share redemption notes equity Warrant Accumulated

premium reserve reserve reserve losses Total

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

At 1 April 2005 660,795 69 — — (215,182) 445,682

Issue of shares at premium 17,410 — — — — 17,410

Capitalization of shares at

premium (20,010) — — — — (20,010)

Expenses on capitalization

of premium (320) — — — — (320)

Issue of warrants — — — 4,950 — 4,950

Loss for the period — — — — (3,674) (3,674)

Share premium set-off

against accumulated

losses (218,856) — — — 218,856 —

At 31 December 2005 and

1 January 2006 439,019 69 — 4,950 — 444,038

Private placing 39,200 — — — — 39,200

Issue of convertible notes — — 17,119 — — 17,119

Expenses on issue of shares (767) — — — — (767)

Loss for the year — — — — (63,054 ) (63,054)

Share premium set-off

against accumulated

losses (63,054) — — — 63,054 —

At 31 December 2006 414,398 69 17,119 4,950 — 436,536

(c) Pursuant to the minutes of a directors’ meeting held on 31 December 2006, an amount of

approximately HK$63,054,000 was transferred from share premium account to offset the

accumulated losses of the Company at 31 December 2006.

(d) Nature and purpose of reserves:

(i) Share premium represents the excess of consideration over par value of shares issued.

(ii) Capital redemption reserve represents nominal value of shares repurchased out of

distributable profits.
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33. Reserves (Continued)

(d) (Continued)

(iii) Convertible notes equity reserve represents the value of the non-exercised equity component

of convertible notes issued by the Company recognised in accordance with the accounting

policy adopted for convertible notes set out in note 2(o).

(iv) Warrant reserve represents the net proceeds received from the issue of warrants of the

Company. The reserve will be transferred to share capital and share premium accounts

upon the exercise of the warrants.

In July 2005, the Company issued 225,000,000 non-listed warrants at an issue price of

HK$0.022 per warrant by private placement. Each warrant entitles the holder to subscribe

for one ordinary share of HK$0.05 each at an initial subscription price of HK$0.35 per

share during the two-year period from the date of allocation and issue of the warrants.

(v) Exchange reserve represents exchange differences arising from the translation of the financial

statements of subsidiaries and associates operating outside Hong Kong.

(vi) The Company’s reserves available for distribution represent the share premium and retained

profits. Under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, share premium of the Company

is available for paying distributions or dividends to shareholders subject to the provisions

of its Memorandum or Articles of Associations and provided that immediately following the

distribution or dividend the Company is able to pay its debts as they fall due in the

ordinary course of business. As at 31 December 2006, the aggregate value of the share

premium and retained profits of the Company available for distribution is HK$414,398,000

(31 December 2005: HK$439,019,000).

34. Deferred Taxation not Recognized

At the balance sheet date and for the year, the Group has not recognised deferred tax asset in respect of

tax losses of approximately HK$126 million (2005: HK$131 million) as it is not probable that taxable

profit will be available against which tax losses can be utilised.

At the balance sheet date, the Group has unrecognized deferred tax assets arising from tax losses of

HK$126 million (2005: HK$131 million). The tax losses of approximately HK$121 million (2005: HK$124

million) arising in Hong Kong have no expiry date under current tax legislation. Tax losses arising in the

PRC of approximately HK$5 million (2005: HK$7 million) can be used to offset against future taxable

profits of the companies in which the losses arose for a maximum of 5 years.

The Group and the Company had no other significant unprovided deferred tax liabilities not recognised

for the year and at the balance sheet date.
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35. Notes to Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

(a) Acquisition of a subsidiary

On 20 February 2006, the Group entered into a binding letter of intent to acquire 55% of the

issued capital of Continental Ocean Investment and Development Company Limited (“CIDCOL”).

CIDCOL is a company incorporated in Macau and its only material asset is a development site

located in Macau. The consideration of the acquisition was approximately HK$91.1 million and

was satisfied by the issue of 2.5% fixed interest convertible redeemable notes (“convertible notes”)

by the Company on 28 April 2006. The vendors, other than Mr. Choy Wang Kong, are directors or

their associates of the Company as at 31 December 2006.

Year ended

31/12/2006

HK$’000

Net assets acquired:

Property under development 304,157

Trade and other receivables 19

Cash and cash equivalents 11,456

Trade and other payables (6)

Bank loan (150,000)

165,626

Less: Minority interests (74,532)

Total consideration 91,094

Satisfied by:

Issue of convertible notes 91,094

Analysis of net inflow of cash and cash equivalents in respect

of acquisition of a subsidiary:

Cash consideration —

Less: Cash and cash equivalents 11,456

11,456
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35. Notes to Consolidated Cash Flow Statement (Continued)

(b) Disposal of subsidiaries

Year ended

31/12/2006

HK$’000

Net assets disposed of:

Property, plant and machinery 5,102

Inventories 737

Trade and other receivables 1,202

Bank balances and cash 929

Trade and other payables (350)

Due to a director (795)

Exchange reserve (5)

6,820

Loss on disposal of interests in subsidiaries (4,820)

Total consideration 2,000

Satisfied by:

Cash 2,000

Aanalysis of net inflow of cash and cash equivalents in respect

of disposals of subsidiaries:

Cash consideration 2,000

Less: Bank balances and cash of the subsidiaries disposed (929)

1,071
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35. Notes to Consolidated Cash Flow Statement (Continued)

(c) Major non-cash transactions

On 15 March 2006, a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company entered into an agreement with

vendors who were Mr. Pedro Chiang, Mr. Law Kar Po, Mr. Wu Ka I, Miguel, Ms. Leong Lai Heng,

Mr. Hoi Man Pak and Mr. Choy Wang Kong in respect of the acquisition of 55% of the issued

quota and shareholders’ loans of Companhia De Investimento E Desenvolvimento Continental

Ocean Limitada (in English “Continental Ocean Investment and Development Company Limited”)

(“CIDCOL”). CIDCOL is a company incorporated in Macau on 7 October 2005 and its only

material asset is a development site located in Lote TN6, Taipa, Macau. The consideration of the

acquisition was approximately HK$91.1 million and was satisfied by the issue of 2.5% fixed

interest convertible redeemable notes (“convertible notes”) by the Company on 28 April 2006. The

vendors, other than Mr. Choy Wang Kong, are the Company’s directors or their associates as at 31

December 2006.

Holders of the convertible notes are entitled to elect to convert the convertible notes into Shares

of the Company at the conversion price of HK$0.148 per Share (subject to adjustment) until 27

April 2011.

36. Contingent Liabilities

As at the balance sheet date, the Company has issued a single guarantee to a bank in respect of a

banking facility granted to a wholly owned subsidiary which expires on 24 July 2007.

As at the balance sheet date, the directors do not consider it probable that a claim will be made against

the company under the guarantee. The maximum liability of the company at the balance sheet date

under the single guarantee issued is the outstanding amount of the facility drawn down by the subsidiary

of HK$97,860,000 (2005: Nil).

At the balance sheet date, the Group had no other significant contingent liabilities (2005: Nil).

37. Related party Transactions

Save as disclosed elsewhere in these financial statements, the Group had the following transactions with

related parties during the period:

(a) Mr. Lee Sam Yuen, John (an ex-director of the Company) and Mrs. Lee Shiao Yu Cho, (a close

family of Mr. Lee Sam Yuen, John), provided a personal guarantee of HK$100 million (31 December

2005: HK$100 million) to a bank to secure general banking facilities granted to a subsidiary, for

which no charge is made.
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37. Related Party Transactions (Continued)

(b) The Group has leased certain properties from D.H. International Limited (“D.H. International”), a

related company owned by a foundation of which Mrs. Lee Shiao Yu Cho and Mr. Lee Sam Yuen,

John are beneficiaries, at an aggregate monthly rental of HK$107,000. Total rental paid during the

year and deposit paid were amounting to HK$1,284,000 (9 months ended 31 December 2005:

HK$963,000) and HK$218,000 (9 months ended 31 December 2005: HK$218,000) respectively.

In addition to the above, D.H. International has provided all monies mortgage over six properties

held and an assignment of the insurance policy over those properties to a bank to secure general

banking facilities granted to a subsidiary of the Company.

(c) On 30 May 2005, a subsidiary of the Company as a tenant, entered into a tenancy agreement with

Precision Advance Limited which is owned as to approximately 33.3% by Mr. Law Kar Po, a

director and substantial shareholder of the Company, and as to approximately 66.7% by Mr. Law’s

relatives. The monthly rental and other related expenses are approximately HK$180,000 and

HK$7,187 respectively. The total rental expenses and related expenses paid for the year ended 31

December 2006 amounted to HK$940,000 (9 months ended 31 December 2005: HK$1,076,000).

(d) The Group has transferred the retail assets of the Shoes and Bags Retail Business to a related

company, of which Mr. Law Kar Po and Ms. Law Wing Yee, Wendy are the directors, for a

consideration of HK$950,000. Retail assets included, but not limited to inventories as at

commencement of business of 15 June 2006, equipment, fixed assets, contracts, business records,

rights in the use of licences and interests in the entire issued share capital of Star Power Trading

Limited and Star Chain Enterprises Limited which are all related to the Shoes and Bags Retail

Business. Upon completion of such sale and purchase on 30 June 2006, the Group ceased to

conduct the Shoes and Bags Retail Business. Total loss arising from this transaction amounted to

HK$2,077,000.

(e) Key management personnel remuneration

The key management personnel of the Group comprises all directors, details of  their emoluments

are disclosed in Note 11.
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38. Operating Lease Commitments

(a) The Group leased out certain buildings under operating lease with average lease terms of 2 to 5

years. At 31 December 2006, the Group had total future minimum lease receivable under non-

cancellable operating leases falling due as follows:

The Group

2006 2005

Investment Investment

properties Others properties Others

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

Within one year 645 377 — 781

In the second to fifth years 2,871 169 — 434

3,516 546 — 1,215

(b) At 31 December 2006, the Group had total outstanding commitments for future minimum lease

payable under non-cancellable operating lease in respect of properties, plant and equipment

which fall due as follows:

The Group

2006 2005

HK$’000 HK$’000

Within one year 2,777 14,736

In the second to fifth years 296 12,731

3,073 27,467

39. Capital Commitments

The Group

2006 2005

HK$’000 HK$’000

Commitments for the acquisition of property, plant and equipment

— contracted but not provided for — 2,603

— authorised but not contracted for — 49,070

— 51,673
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40. Pledge of Assets

(a) At 31 December 2006, the Group pledged the following assets to secure general banking facilities

granted to the Group:

The Group

2006 2005

HK$’000 HK$’000

Investment property 61,114 —

Properties under development 389,267 72,731

Properties held for sale 85,662 —

536,043 72,731

(b) At 31 December 2006, bank deposits of HK$100,000 (2005: Nil) were pledged for issuance of

guarantee letter for constructions.

41. Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies

The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise interest bearing borrowings and cash and bank

deposits. The main purpose of these financial instruments is to raise finance for the Group’s operations.

The Group has various other financial assets and liabilities such as accounts receivable and accounts

payable, which arise directly from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments are fair value and cash flow interest rate

risks, foreign exchange risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The board reviews and agrees policies for

managing each of there risks and they are summarized below.

Fair value and cash flow interest rate risks

Fair value interest rate risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of

changes in market interest rates. Cash flow interest rate risk is the risk that the future cash flows of a

financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates.

The Group is exposed to interest rate risks due to changes in interest rates of interest-bearing financial

assets and liabilities. Interest-bearing financial assets are mainly deposits with banks which are mostly

short term in nature whereas interest-bearing financial liabilities are primarily short term bank borrowings

with primarily floating interest rates. The Group is therefore exposed to both fair value and cash flow

interest rate risks. The Group’s policy is to obtain the most favourable interest rates available without

increasing its foreign currency exposure.



106

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2006

H
o

n
e

st
y 

Tr
e

a
su

re
 I

n
te

rn
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
H

o
ld

in
g

s 
Lt

d

41. Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies (Continued)

Foreign currency risk

The Group operates mainly in Macau, mainland China and Hong Kong and is exposed to foreign

exchange risk arising from MOP and Renminbi currency exposures, primarily with respect to the Hong

Kong dollars. Foreign exchange risk arises from future commercial transactions, recognised assets and

liabilities and net investments in foreign operations. The risk management policy is to have the liquid

assets mainly denominated in MOP, Hong Kong dollars and Renminbi.

Credit risk

The trade and other receivables represent the Group’s major exposure to the credit risk arising from the

default of the counterparties, with an exposure related to the carrying amount of these financial assets in

the consolidated balance sheet. The Group has no significant concentration of credit risk with respect to

retail business as it has a large number of diversified customers. With respect to the trading business and

medical-related business, the Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy third parties. The

Groups seeks to maintain strict control over its outstanding receivables and has a credit control

development to minimize credit risk. In addition, all receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing

basis and overdue balances are followed up by senior management. Accordingly, the Group’s exposure

to bad debts is not significant.

Liquidity risk

In the management of liquidity risk, the Group monitors and maintains level of cash and cash equivalents

considered adequate by management to finance the Group’s operations and mitigate the effects of

fluctuation in cash flows. The Group’s treasury department’s responsibility is maintaining a balance

between continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of banking facilities in order to meet its

liquidity requirements both in the short and longer term. All debts of the Group as at 31 December 2006

would mature in less than one year.

42. Non-adjusting Post Balance Sheet Events

On 26 March 2007, a wholly-owned subsidiary (the “Vendor”) of the Company signed a provisional

contract (the “Contract”) with an independent third party (the “Purchaser”). Pursuant to the Contract, the

Vendor agreed to dispose of and the Purchaser agreed to acquire 24 residential units at various floors of

Edificio Chu Kuan Mansion with book value of approximately HK$49.3 million as at 31 December 2006

for a total consideration of HK$53.6 million. The disposal will be completed by the end of July 2007.
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43. Comparative Figures

Comparative figures have been reclassified to conform to the current year’s presentation.

44. Accounting Estimates and Judgements and Key Source of Estimation Uncertainty

The methods, estimates and judgements the directors use in applying the Group’s accounting policies

have a significant impact on the Group’s financial position and operating results. Some of the accounting

policies require the Group to apply estimates and judgements, on matters that are inherently uncertain.

In addition to note 41 which contains information about the assumptions and the risk factors, certain

critical accounting judgements in applying the Group’s accounting policies are described below. The key

assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the balance sheet

date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and

liabilities within the next financial year, are also discussed below.

(a) Depreciation and amortization

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful

lives, after taking into account the estimated residual value. The Group reviews annually the

useful life of an asset and its residual value, if any. Both the period and method of amortisation

are reviewed annually. The depreciation and amortisation expense for future periods is adjusted if

there are significant changes from previous estimates.

(b) Valuation of inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value at balance sheet date. Net

realizable value is determined on the basis of the estimated selling price less the estimated costs

necessary to make the sale. The directors estimate the net realisable value for finished goods and

work-in-progress based primarily on the latest invoice prices and current market conditions. In

addition, the directors perform an inventory review on a product-by-product basis at each year

end date and assess the need for write down of inventories.

(c) Impairment losses for bad and doubtful debts

Impairment losses for bad and doubtful debts are assessed and provided based on the directors’

review on an on going basis of ageing analysis and evaluation of collectibility. A considerable

level of judgement is exercised by the directors when assessing the credit worthiness and past

collection history of each individual customer.

Any increase or decrease in the impairment losses for bad and doubtful debts would affect profit

or loss in future years.
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45. Possible Impact of Amendments, New Standards and Interpretations Issued but
not yet Effective for the Year ended 31 December 2006

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the HKICPA has issued the following amendments,

new standards and interpretations which are not yet effective for the accounting year ended 31 December

2006 and which have not been adopted in these financial statements.

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what the impact of these amendments, new

standards and new interpretations is expected to be in the period of initial application. So far it has

concluded that the adoption of them is unlikely to have a significant impact on the Group’s results of

operations and financial position.

In addition, the following developments may result in new or amended disclosures in the financial

statements:

HKAS 1 (Amendment) Capital Disclosures1

HKFRS 7 Financial instruments: disclosures1

HK(IFRIC)-Int 7 Applying the Restatement Approach under

HKAS 29 Financial Reporting in Hyperinflationary Economies2

HK(IFRIC)-Int 8 Scope of HKFRS23

HK(IFRIC)-Int 9 Reassessment of Embedded Derivatives4

HK(IFRIC)-Int 10 Interim Financial Reporting and Impairment5

HK(IFRIC)-Int 11 HKFRS2-Group and Treasury Share Transactions6

1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2007

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 March 2006

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 May 2006

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 June 2006

5 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 November 2006

6 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 May 2007
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Results

9 months

Year ended ended For the year ended 31 March

31/12/2006 31/12/2005 2005 2004 2003

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

Turnover 72,873 63,949 207,107 207,902 154,726

Profit/(loss) attributable

to equity holders of

the Company 57,246 38,399 (108,308) (491) (16,001)

Dividends — — — — —

Basic earnings/(loss)

per share 2.09 cents 1.78 cents (8.85 cents) (0.06 cents) (2.11 cents)

Diluted earnings/(loss)

per share 1.93 cents N/A N/A N/A N/A

Assets and Liabilities

As at 31 December As at 31 March

2006 2005 2005 2004 2003

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

Total assets 1,262,205 746,419 618,945 173,650 127,833

Total liabilities 522,004 138,615 72,169 74,362 62,461

NET ASSETS 740,201 607,804 546,776 99,288 65,372
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Major Properties under Development

Expected

Stage of date of Gross Group’s

Location Intended use completion completion Site area floor area interest

(sq m) (sq m) (%)

1. Lote TN6, Residential witha 0% 2010 4,661 67,679 55

Cheok Ka Chun, shopping arcade

Taipa, Macau and carpark

2. Nos. 1-5 da Rua Residential and 50% 2009 1,085 6,120 51

de Afonso Commercial

deAlbuquerque,

Nos. 4-12 de Rua

da Esperanca and

Nos. 1-13 da Rua

do Tap Siac,Macau

Major Properties Held for Sale

Gross Group’s

Location Existing use floor area interest

(sq m) (%)

1. 37 units located at South Block, Edificio Comercial Residential 3,138 100

Chu Kuan Mansion, Rua de Madrid No. 169, Macau

2. 60 carparks located at South Block, Edificio Comercial Carpark 656 100

Chu Kuan Mansion, Rua de Madrid No. 169, Macau

Major Properties Held for Investment

Location Existing use Term of lease

29 units located at South Block, Edificio Comercial Chu Kuan Residential Medium

Mansion Rua de Madrid No. 169, Macau
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